
_________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, April 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
JESSIE MAYS COMMUNITY HALL 

30975 NW Hillcrest Street 
Monday, April 7, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 03/17/2014 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 
may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director and Chief of Police. 

Written report has been submitted by Library Director Debbie Brodie. 
 
7. PRESENTATION: 

A. Proclamation: April 21-26, 2014 National Community Development Week by 
the National Community Development Association. 

B. Presentation to the North Plains Elementary School of funds raised at the 
benefit dance on March 22 and the matching funds from the City Council. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

A. Public hearing to present and discuss the proposed 2013-14 Supplemental 
Budget and receive comments from interested persons. 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 1819 approving the 2013-14 Supplemental 
Budget 

B. Discussion of City Manager Weekly Report distributed March 27, 2014 
regarding budget issues raised. 

C. Discussion of credits, reimbursements, and costs associated with DR Horton 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 98



_________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, April 7, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

subdivision on Curtis Street and Highland Court. 
D. Approval of Resolution No. 1824 appointment to Budget Committee: Marrina 

Abeln 
E. Approval of Resolution No. 1825 appointment to Budget Committee: Orvalle 

Lengele 
F. Approval of Resolution No. 1826 appointment to Budget Committee: Vernon 

Epling 
G. Approval of Resolution No. 1827 appointment to Budget Committee: Marilyn 

Firth 
H. Discussion of Kaybern Street lot options for downtown area 
I. Discussion of North Plains Public Library donating library fines collecting 

during National Library Week to the North Plains Food Pantry. 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion on design and installation of permanent signage for businesses in 
the downtown area. 

B. Discussion and approval of specific draft city policies from number 650-705.  
(Copies of policies were distributed at the 9/16/13 Council meeting) 

 
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

A. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 422— An Ordinance of the 
City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, temporarily prohibiting the 
location of medical marijuana facilities within the City of North Plains 

 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on 
meetings attended and other items. 

B. April 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Wednesday, April 9: Art of the Story storytelling festival at Jessie Mays @ 
7:00 p.m. 

 Thursday, April 10: Volunteer Recognition Spaghetti Dinner at Jessie Mays @ 
6:30 p.m. 

 Saturday, April 12: Kukatonon Children’s African Dance Troupe at Jessie 
Mays @ 1:00 (rescheduled to this date because of the snow in February) 

 Saturday, April 19: Spring Country Classic Dance sponsored by NP Senior 
Center at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 98



_________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, April 7, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION: (No action may be taken in executive session. If action 
needs to be taken, the Council will do so in regular session.) 
A. Consider convening in Executive Session under ORS 192.660(2)(e) to 

conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to 
negotiate real property transactions. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at Jessie Mays 
Community Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

 
Monday, April 21, 2014 Monday, May 5, 2014 Monday, May 19, 2014 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

Jessie Mays Community Hall 
30975 NW Hillcrest Street 
Monday, March 17, 2014 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 

Council to order at 7:18 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Flag salute was conducted at the beginning of the 

URA meeting just prior to this meeting. 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Michael Broome, Michael Demagalski, Robert Kindel, Jr., and Glen Warren 
 

Excused Absent: Charlynn Newton 
 

Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Public 
Works Director Blake Boyles, Finance Director Rachael Lembo, Management 
Analyst Jennifer Knowles, Deputy City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 03/03/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 None forthcoming 
 
6. STAFF REPORTS 
 
Public Works: Director Boyles reported he met with ODOT regarding the Trail Project.  It 
has been a while since they have met. Everything is still on board as far as the $1M for the 
project. The only change is that the money is coming from the Federal program instead of 
the State. This will allow the State to help us with in-kind engineering plans that we can 
have drawn up before we get an actual design engineer on board. There are six different 
ideas that have been discussed.  Will be going into design review around September and 
will start the project next year. 
 
Police Dept.: Chief Snyder reported he is spending time getting ready for trial on a couple 
of cases.  The department is also preparing to get on board with the marijuana dispensary 
issue depending on the outcome of the discussion of the Council. 
 
7. PRESENTATION: 
U.S. Army Colonel (Ret.) Herb Hirst of Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve 
(ESGR) addressed the Council. ESGR is a Department of Defense agency that seeks to 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 5 

develop and promote a culture in which all American employers support and value the 
military service of their employees.  Hirst is seeking the Councils’ support for the Guards 
and Reserves and their rights concerning employment while performing active duty 
responsibilities.  
 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Warren to approve a sign of support of the Guard 
and Reserves.  Motion was approved unanimously.  Hirst presented Council with a plaque 
which visibly confirms this support for employees who are members of the Guard and 
Reserve.  He also presented a cd to the city that explains what the employer’s 
responsibilities are.  

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Approval of Smokehouse Summit Event 
 
DeBry presented the staff report regarding the Smokehouse Summit. She stated the need 
to make a commitment to the Pacific Northwest Barbeque Association (PNWBA) to 
guarantee the purse in order to start recruiting competitors for the event. DeBry was 
seeking the approval of the Council to submit to the PNWBA the guarantee of the purse. 
Discussion ensued. This barbeque event is a fundraiser for the North Plains Senior 
Center. 
 
Cindy Hirst, 31871 NW Lenox Street, of the North Plains Chamber of Commerce, 
commented that this event raises many concerns from North Plains’ businesses point of 
view. They feel it will affect their bottom line and are concerned about their income.  Hirst 
is hoping the coordinators of this event would be able to work closely with the business 
owners on how to capitalize on the event. Hatcher asked if this type of marketing is 
something the Chamber can take on with the businesses. Hirst stated there is not enough 
time to coordinate this. 
 
Hirst also inquired if the City has a policy in place as to how to decide which organization 
is the recipient of funds raised by the different events the city is sponsoring. Hirst was 
informed that there is not a policy in place, but it is always a non-profit. Hirst suggested 
that perhaps the City keep 1-2% of the extra funds to put toward turning the lot on Kaybern 
into a parking lot—the City is also a non-profit. This lot could provide at least 30 additional 
parking spaces the community could use. 
 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Warren to approve the Smokehouse Summit. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Discussion of combining Farmers’ Market and Annual Ice Cream Social 
 
Cindy Hirst and Vanessa VanDomelen, 14560 NW Dairy Creek Road, both from the 
Farmers’ Market proposed to the Council to consider merging the Annual Ice Cream 
Social with the opening night of the new Thursday Marketplace. Council was presented 
with a staff report in the Council packet. Discussion ensued regarding the logistics of 
moving the Ice Cream Social from Jessie Mays to Commercial Street. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Warren to move the 2014 15th Annual Ice Cream 
Social to Commercial Street on June 5, 2014, the first night of the Thursday Marketplace. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Report on comparison of cost of Moonlight printing and distributing the City 
Newsletter compared to staff copying and distributing it. 

 
Mayor Hatcher requested staff provide information on the cost of printing water bills 
through Moonlight BPO vs. printing in-house. Staff submitted the information that was 
provided to Council in 2011 and provided an updated spreadsheet with the comparison of 
these two options. Discussion ensued. The inclusion of the City newsletter that is printed 
and distributed along with the water bills has added to the cost, but there is significant 
reduction in staff time by outsourcing the printing.  Moonlight is eligible for discounted 
postage because of the volume of mailings they do. No action taken. This item was 
informational only. 

 
D. Approval of Resolution No.1822 terminating temporary reductions in System 

Development Fees 
 
Staff was directed to draw up a resolution for Council that terminates the incentive 
program that was created to encourage in-fill development of single family homes by 
temporarily reducing System Development fees. This item was discussed in detail at the 
March 3, 2014 Council meeting. 
 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Broome to approve Resolution No. 1822 
terminating temporary reductions in System Development Fees. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

E. Discussion of scheduling Budget Committee dates 
 

DeBry stated that Council needs to set the dates for the 2014-15 Budget Committee 
meetings.  The Budget Committee may need 2-3 meetings to finalize and submit a 
recommendation to Council to adopt the budget. Discussion ensued. The first Budget 
Committee meeting will be held on Monday, April 14, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays 
Community Hall. If a second meeting is necessary, it was suggested to meet on May 12th. 
Staff will notify the budget committee members. There are five vacancies on the Budget 
Committee at this time.  

 
F. Consider Budget Committee Appointment: Cynthia Hirst 

 
Motion by Kindel and seconded by Demagalski to approve Resolution No. 1823, the 
appointment of Cynthia Hirst to the Budget Committee. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

G. Discussion on prohibiting the location of medical marijuana facilities within the 
City of North Plains 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. Recently State law was enacted allowing medical 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 5 

marijuana facilities to be located in areas zoned Commercial and Industrial. A second 
Senate Bill was passed that allows local governments to enact a moratorium on allowing 
marijuana dispensaries until May 2015. During that time we can look at our zoning code to 
make sure the facilities will fit to the code. This item was for discussion only. 
 

H. Discussion of February Check Register 
 
The February Check Register was submitted to Council for review. 
 
Lenahan asked of the status of the Speight nuisance abatement.  There is a hearing 
coming up at the Washington County Courthouse—it has been a very long process. It may 
be as late as April or May before we see an end to this. 
 

I. Distribution of Statement of Economic Interest forms 
 
Statement of Economic Interest forms were distributed from the State Ethics Committee. 
Council members will have until April 15, 2014 to complete their forms and submit them to 
the state. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion and approval of specific draft city policies from number 614-631 
 
Council went through policies 614-631. 
 
Hatcher asked that the Policy Number 627-Communications, be sent to legal to review 
since our IT Support is now with Hillsboro instead of a private entity.  Staff will have the 
attorney take another look at it as our technology has changed. This policy will come back 
to Council. 
 
Lenahan is concerned with Policy Number 630-Whistleblower and feels it is too simple. 
Hatcher directed Staff to ask Legal if it needs to be beefed up in order to protect us. 
 
An edited copy of the manual will be delivered to Council at the end of the process. 
 

B. Discussion of 4th of July Fireworks  
 
DeBry presented the staff report. For the past two years, Recology has funded a fireworks 
show after the 4th of July celebration downtown. This is the first year Council gets to 
decide if we are going to spend some of the money received from Recology on fireworks 
or not.  We don’t have a specific sponsor at this time for fireworks.  A fundraising goal has 
been set and staff is seeking approval from Council to expand the efforts for fundraising to 
ask residents if they want to support it. Council was also asked to be considering that if we 
do need to buy fireworks, would Council want to spend money on this. 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
None Scheduled 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 5 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 

 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
B. Duyck and M. Abeln have left the employment of the City of North Plains. Staff has 
received between 40-50 applications for the Utility Worker position. 
 
Staff has painted city hall. Everyone is invited to stop by and take a look at it. 
 
DeBry has been speaking with the City Manager of Banks about sharing a person on a 
part-time basis to focus on economic development. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
Broome reminded everyone that we are holding a dance on Saturday night. This will be 
the last dance the City is sponsoring for the season.  The dances will start again in 
September.  
 
Kindel inquired if we have funds in the budget to purchase a larger screen for viewing 
presentations. Margaret Wold stated she has a brand new screen at the senior center that 
they are not going to be using. DeBry stated we could look into having it mounted from the 
ceiling and we could perhaps change the orientation of the Council Chamber. 
 
Senior Center remodel is supposed to be completed by April 8th.  Margaret Wold will keep 
Council posted. 
 
Hatcher invited everyone to attend the Volunteer Recognition Spaghetti Dinner on 
Thursday, April 10. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Saturday, March 22: Benefit Dance at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. (proceeds to 
North Plains Elementary School for Art Supplies-Council matching funds) 

 Sunday, March 23: Playdate at Jessie Mays @ 1:30 p.m. 

 Thursday, April 10: Volunteer Recognition Spaghetti Dinner at Jessie Mays @ 
6:30. 

 Saturday, April 12: Kukatonon Children’s African Dance Troupe at Jessie Mays 
@ 1:00 (rescheduled to this date because of the snow in February) 

 Saturday, April 19: Spring Country Classic Dance sponsored by NP Senior 
Center at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 9:20 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ Date approved _______________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 98



 
Page - 1 

City of North Plains 
Police Department  

3/28/14 
 
TO:               Martha DeBry, City 

Manager     
  City Council      
  Department Heads 
 
FROM: Bill Snyder, Police Chief 
           
SUBJ.: DEPARTMENT REPORT   
     
Officers have been attending Emergency Vehicle Operation training and working to complete 
some open cases.    
 
The following are the numbers regarding criminal reports/activity for March: 

  2014 

Activity Mar 

Vehicle tow 3 

Reckless Driving 0 

Fatal vehicle assist 1 

Harassment 1 

Assist agency 1 

Welfare check 1 

Drug arrest 1 

Child abuse  0 

Burglary  1 

Theft 1 

Warrant arrest 0 

Found Property 0 

Hit and Run 1 

Info report 1 

Agenda Item No: 6 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 98



    City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

3/24/2014 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 

  City Council 

  Department Heads 

FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 CDBG Project Management –NW Claxtar St- FINAL 

 Construction coordination with ODOT on interchange/ pedestrian trail working designs 

 East side reservoir cost evaluation, possible real estate property locations 

 Highland Ct Subdivision coordination 

 Sunset Ridge Subdivision coordination 

 Sunset Terrace Subdivision coordination 

 Pacific Estates Subdivision coordination 

 Emergency Management planning 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Monthly meter reading 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 Leak repair 

 Service installation 

 Water samples 

 Mowing 

 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

Agenda Item No: 6 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 98



City of North Plains - Library Department - April 7 to May 10, 2014 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Thank You, Margaret Reh.  Since the North Plains Public Library was conceived, Margaret has been 
at the forefront of its promotion, organization, and fundraising.  She is one of the Library’s most 
dedicated supporters, and she was one of those who made the dream of a library for this community 
come true.  Since its inception, Margaret has been most involved with “cataloging,” the process by 
which new materials are received, author/title information is entered into the online countywide 
database to show that North Plains owns a particular item, and covers and labels are affixed before 
checkout to the public.  We appreciate Margaret’s many years of service and wish her well as she 
transitions to the full time City Recorder position for North Plains.  In her place at the Library, please 
welcome new staff member, Araceli Acosta, to the Library Assistant - Cataloging position.  The next 
Library Buzz newsletter will feature a biography and photo of our newest employee. 
 
Thank You, Anapreet Kaur Gill.  After several years serving on the North Plains City Council, Ana 
began a term on the North Plains Library Board in one of the three in-city positions.  She has faithfully 
served in this capacity for almost one year.  Ana recently moved outside the city limits of North Plains, 
and her time with us ended with the March Library Board meeting.  Because she will retain her position 
as manager of the senior apartments in town, we anticipate still seeing her often as a Library patron.  
The Library Board and Staff extend their many thanks to Ana for her dedication to the Library.  
Recruitment for a new in-city Library Board member will take place in June. 
 
Library Director Leave of Absence.  Thank you for moving the Staff Reports at City Council meetings 
from the end of the agenda to nearer the beginning.  I am sorry that I will not be able to enjoy this early 
reporting option for a while, as I will be absent from the Library and my Director duties on a medical 
leave for approximately eight weeks, beginning March 31.  The Library Board will not meet in April or 
May.  There will be no Council Reports submitted during this time, however, the North Plains Library 
Buzz newsletter, which contains much of the same information, will be published for April and May in 
my absence.  Carol Aldrich assumes managerial duties for the Library in my absence, and City Manager 
Martha DeBry has graciously agreed to be available to staff as needed. 
 
Art of the Story Festival with Olga Loya.  Join us at Jessie Mays Community Hall on Wednesday, 
April 9 at 7 p.m. to listen to folk tales, myths, legends, and magical stories from around the globe.  With 
an emphasis on Latin American Stories, Olga Loya is a national recognized bilingual storyteller from 
San Jose, California.  She performs a large repertoire of family and personal stories.  Loya has been a 
featured teller at the Latin-American Storytelling Festival in Guadalajara, Mexico, and twice has been 
featured at the National Storytelling Festival in Jonesborough, Tennessee.  Loya is a National 
Storytelling Network recipient of the 2013 Oracle Award for the Circle of Excellence.  This presentation 
is free and suitable for adults and families with school-aged children. 
 
Artwork on Exhibit.  Local high school student, Dylan King, will show his original drawings, cartoons, 
and caricatures through April. 
 
The art exhibit that will run from May 3 to July 4 will feature patriotic quilts created by members of The 
Westside Quilters Guild in honor of Independence Day and the North Plains Fourth of July Colonial 
Celebration. 
 
Quilt Display.  The April quilt on display above the circulation desk was created by Paula DiNovo of 
The Westside Quilters Guild and is titled “Spring.” 

Agenda Item No: 6 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 98



 
The May/June quilt will have a patriotic theme in keeping with the Fourth of July and the larger quilt 
exhibit in the computer lab. 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the 
children's section of the Library. 

 April 9  Storytime with Children’s Librarian Kay:  Bedtime 

 April 16  Special Guest Storytime:  Nicki’s Tarantula “Walkity” and Spider Stories 

 April 23  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Ducks 

 April 30  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Pigs 

 May 7   Storytime with Miss Marion 
 
Friends of the Library Meeting.  There will be a regular meeting of the Friends on Monday, April 14 
at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 
Library Book Club.  Sweet Thunder by Ivan Doig will be discussed on Wednesday, April 30 beginning 
at 7:30 p.m. in the Library.  In the winter of 1920, Morrie Morgan finds himself back in Butte, Montana, 
with his bride, Grace.  A mansion left to him by a former boss turns out to be a money pit, and the 
miners in town are struggling with the ruthless Anaconda Copper Mining Company.  These two 
dilemmas launch Morrie into his new career with the fledgling Thunder newspaper where he enlists his 

encyclopedic knowledge to write hilariously scathing editorials against Anaconda.  New members are 

welcome.  Refreshments will be served. 
 
Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, May 1 at 
6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led class.) 
 
First Friday Flick.  Join us at the Library on May 2 at 6 p.m. to watch the G-rated movie, The Pirate 
Fairy, a 3D computer-animated production from Walt Disney Studios Home Entertainment.  This is the 
fifth Tinker Bell movie and features a band of pirates led by a cabin boy named James, who will soon 
be known as Captain Hook.  Admission is free.  Seating is limited.  Refreshments will be served. 
 
Super Saturday – The Portland Ballet.  Joining us for the third year, The Portland Ballet troupe of 
teens will appear at the Jessie Mays Community Hall beginning at 1 p.m. on Saturday, May 10.  Learn 
some moves; watch some great dancing.  Free and suitable for all ages. 
 
Filing Taxes in 2014.  The Library carries the most commonly used forms and instructions.  Less 
common forms are also available for photocopying. 
 

FILE ONLINE: 
Federal: http://www.irs.gov 
State: http://www.oregon.gov/DOR 
Other States: http://www.taxadmin.org/fta/link/forms.html  

 
HOW TO FILE FOR FREE ONLINE: 
Federal and State: http://freefile.irs.gov/ 

This method is through the IRS website and links to tax software companies who offer 
free filing for filers who meet certain parameters. If not qualifying for any of the companies, 
this site offers free fill-able forms and free filing.   

Federal and State: www.myfreetaxes.com 
This method offered by the IRS is free to all who have income of $58,000 or less. 

 
___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 98

http://www.irs.gov/
http://www.oregon.gov/DOR
http://www.taxadmin.org/fta/link/forms.html
http://freefile.irs.gov/
http://www.myfreetaxes.com/


ORDER FORMS BY PHONE: 
Federal: 800-829-3676 (24 hours) 
Fed Teletax: 800-829-1040 
Fed via fax: 702-368-9694 
State: 800-356-4222 (toll-free in OR) 
State TTY: 800-886-7204 

 
PHONE TAX ASSISTANCE: 
Federal: 800-829-1040 
State: 503-378-4988 

 
ORDER STATE FORMS BY MAIL: 
FORMS 
Oregon Department of Revenue 
PO Box 14999 
Salem, OR 97309-0990 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 7A

mreh
Typewritten Text



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 98



 

Proclamation  
NATIONAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT WEEK 

APRIL 21 – 26, 2014 
 
WHEREAS, the week of April 21-26, 2014 has been designated as National Community 
Development Week by the National Community Development Association to celebrate the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and the HOME Investment 
Partnerships (HOME) Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG Program provides annual funding and flexibility to local 
communities to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing, a suitable living environment 
and economic opportunities to low-and moderate-income people; and  
 
WHEREAS, the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program provides funding to 
local communities to create decent, safe, affordable housing opportunities for low-income 
persons.  Nationally, over one million units of affordable housing have been completed 
using HOME funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, since the program’s inception, our community has received a total of 
$3,271,561 in CDBG funds and $334,000 in HOME funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of North Plains designates the week 
of April 21-26, 2014 as National Community Development Week in support of these two 
valuable programs that have made tremendous contributions to the viability of the housing 
stock, infrastructure, public services, and economic vitality of our community.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this community urges Congress and the 
Administration to recognize the outstanding work being done locally and nationally by the 
Community Development Block Grant Program and the HOME Investment Partnerships 
Program by supporting increased funding for both programs in FY 2015.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of North 
Plains, Oregon to be affixed this 7th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor-City of North Plains 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 98



 

City of North Plains, Oregon 

Proposed Supplemental Budget 2013‐14 

April 7, 2014 

   

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 8A



City of North Plains 
FY2013‐14 Supplemental Budget 
 
 
Table of Contents……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…1 
Revised Budget Message, 4/7/2014………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………2 
Original Budget Message, 3/3/2014………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………3 
Budget Charts………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………….…………………..4 
Funds:  
     Internal Service Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………6 
     General Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 7 
          Culture and Recreation……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 11 
          General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….13 
          Police………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 16 
          Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…………………… 19 
          Parks………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……… 21 
          Library……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……… 23 
          Planning…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….….……25 
     Street Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……….….. 27 
     Water Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………..….30   
     Transportation Development Tax Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………..  33 
     Parks Capital Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..…… 35 
     Traffic Impact Fee Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…………….…..…37 
     Vehicle/Equipment Reserve Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………….…………….………… 39 
Transfers…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………… 41 
   
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 98



 
Revised Budget Message, 4/7/2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and Council,  
 
A supplemental budget was presented and discussed on March 3, 2014, and the following changes were suggested and have been 
incorporated into this supplemental budget:  
 
‐ General Fund contingency was originally presented as decreasing from $100,000 to $65,000. Council advised that they want to 

keep the General Fund contingency available for emergencies, and any reductions should be clearly approved by the Council. 
The one item in FY14 which has been approved to come out of the contingency is $15,000 for the Springbrook accounting 
software upgrade. The revised supplemental budget has a General Fund contingency of $85,000.   

‐ The loan made from the General Fund to the URA for the purpose of paying off bank loans was not included in the original 
supplemental budget. Finance Manager Rachael Lembo excluded it per governmental modified accrual accounting guidance, 
however a later discussion with the Oregon Department of Revenue clarified that it is necessary under budget law. A line item in 
the General Fund for Special Payments‐ URA loan for $185,000 has been added to the supplemental budget.  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
Rachael Lembo, Finance Manager    

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

2

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 98



Budget Message 
 
Honorable Mayor and Council,  
 
The original FY2013‐14 budget was adopted on June 3, 2013. This supplemental budget proposes updates to various revenue and 
expenditure line items based on the most current financial information. A list of changes is included within each fund.  

The largest revenue change is in System Development Charges, which are based on new builds. The original budget was for 25 new 
builds, and as of January 31 there have already been 24.  The revised number of new builds is 40. 

Some funds are budgeted to have a decrease in fund balance in FY2013‐14. This is not abnormal, but does require explanation: 

In the Street, Park Capital and Traffic Impact Fee Funds the decrease is due to budgeted capital expenditures. These are one‐
time projects that are funded by beginning fund balance, or revenues collected in prior years. Thus in the current year the fund 
balance is decreasing, however it was sufficiently built up by those prior year revenues.  

In  the  General  Fund  proposed  supplemental  budget  the  fund  balance  is  decreasing  by  $101k,  which  includes  $65k  of 
contingency; assuming the contingency is not used the decrease at year‐end will be $35k. The original budget for the General 
Fund was a decrease of $87k, including a $100k contingency. This is due to investments that will support the City as it continues 
to grow. This  includes equipment (Springbrook accounting software upgrade, new police vehicle), staff (City Recorder, part 
time Police Officer, Management Analyst) and increased community events. Higher property tax revenues are expected as the 
new houses fill with new families, but the expenditures are occurring now. The General Fund beginning fund balance, over 
$1M at the start of this year, is sufficient to cover these expenditures until property tax revenues increase.    

The Urban Renewal Agency (URA) budget has been extracted from the City’s budget as  it  is a separate entity.   The URA board will 
review the URA supplemental budget separately.    
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Rachael Lembo, Finance Manager   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

3

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 98



The primary sources of revenue are Property 
Taxes (General Fund), Charges for Services 
(Water Fund), and Licenses/Permits/Fees 
(General Fund franchise fees, Street Fund 
SDCs, Trans. Devel. Tax Fund SDCs and Parks 
Capital Fund SDCs). 

The largest departments are General 
Government (City Manager, Finance, City 
Hall shared expenses), Street and Water.  

The General Fund departments, Culture and 
Recreation ‐ Planning, make up nearly half of 
the City budget.  

10%

32%

22%

7%
2%

5%

20%

City of North Plains FY2013‐14 Revenue
Property Taxes

Charges for Services

Licenses/Permits/Fees

Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeitures

Interest

Grants

Miscellaneous

Sale of asset

Proceeds of Debt

Transfers In

15%

12%

10%

6%
5%

18%

26%

3%

City of North Plains
FY2013‐14 Expenditures (excluding 
contingency)

Culture and Recreation

General Government

Police

Public Works

Parks

Library

Planning

Special Payment ‐ URA
loan
Street

Water

Trans. Development

Park Capital

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

4

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 98



The City's cash balance has been  climbing 
over the past four years, from $2.9M in June 
2010 to $3.9M in January 2014.    

The fund balance of the General Fund has 
been steadily increasing over the past four 
years.  The spike in FY2010‐11 was the result 
of LOCAP bond proceeds, which were 
transferred to the Street Fund in FY2011‐12 
to pay for capital expenditures. 

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

City of North Plains
Historical Cash Balances

 750,000

 900,000

 1,050,000

 1,200,000

 1,350,000

City of North Plains
General Fund Historical Fund Balance

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

5

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 98



INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 610 

In FY13 the City added an Internal Service Fund (ISF) to account for shared expenses, including City Manager, Finance, Public Works, 
General Government, City Council, City Recorder, Attorney and Engineer. Prior to FY13, these costs had been allocated at the time of 
data entry, which made it hard to determine the full cost. The ISF was helpful in identifying the true cost of these items, as well as 
understanding which aspects of these costs should be shared, how much, and to which funds. After review of the ISF for the past 
year and a half, management has determined it would be more efficient and transparent to combine these departments into the 
General Fund, and calculate transfers based on specific costs within these departments.  That change is proposed with this 
supplemental budget. The new transfers are discussed below.   

Management proposes City Council approve a resolution to close the ISF.    

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

6

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110 

This  fund  is  the primary operating  fund  and  is  accounts  for  all  activities  except  those  legally or  administratively  required  to be 
accounted for in other funds.   

General Fund departments include:  

‐ Culture and Recreation: all community events and personnel supporting those events.  
‐ General Government: City Manager, Finance and administrative staff, and shared costs such as attorney, IT and insurance.  
‐ Police: all costs related to the Police Dept.  
‐ Public Works: personnel and general public works expenditures (excluding direct costs to Streets, Water and Parks).  
‐ Parks: maintenance of Parks and Jessie Mays Community Center 
‐ Library: all costs related to the Library Dept.  
‐ Planning: primarily the City’s engineering firm.   

Supplemental budget changes:  

General Fund Revenue:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  
‐ Increase of building fees based on YTD actuals.  Engineering fees have been increased in relation to this.   
‐ Increase of various grants and donations, primarily due to ODOT and Cover Oregon.  Related expenditures have also increased.   
‐ Transfers have been added to the General Fund as a result of the ISF elimination.   Total transfers are less than the original ISF 

budget due to a reduced allocation amount for the Water Fund.   
‐ Debt proceeds are related to the capital lease for the 2014 Dodge Charger.  The lease payment was budgeted but accounting rules 

require the full amount of the capital lease to be reported as debt proceeds and capital outlay.   

General Fund non‐departmental:  

‐ Contingency decreased by $15k for Springbrook software, remaining contingency is $85k.  
‐ Special payments of $185k have been added for the loan to the URA. 

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

7

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110 Adopted  ISF Adopted   Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014  2013‐2014   2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 1,017,900            ‐                    1,079,207           61,307          1,079,207           ‐                

REVENUES

411000 Property Taxes 352,922                ‐                    352,922               ‐                318,958               (33,964)         90%
462000 Rentals 7,000                    ‐                    7,000                   ‐                3,422                   (3,579)            49%

Licenses, Permits, Fees
418101 Water Franchise 39,000                  ‐                    39,000                 ‐                39,000                 ‐                 100%
418102 CWS Franchise 20,000                  ‐                    20,000                 ‐                16,631                 (3,369)            83%
418103 Qwest Franchise 6,000                    ‐                    6,000                   ‐                81                         (5,919)            1%
418104 Comcast Franchise 5,400                    ‐                    5,400                   ‐                3,500                   (1,900)            65%
418105 Garbage Franchise 10,000                  ‐                    10,000                 ‐                5,314                   (4,686)            53%
418107 PGE Franchise 91,000                  ‐                    91,000                 ‐                12,681                 (78,319)         14%
418108 NW Natural Gas Franchise 24,000                  ‐                    24,000                 ‐                11,345                 (12,655)         47%
418109 Misc Franchise 750                       ‐                    750                      ‐                599                      (151)               80%
418110 MACC Franchise 13,200                  ‐                    13,200                 ‐                6,929                   (6,271)            52%
421000 Business License 6,400                    ‐                    6,400                   ‐                5,116                   (1,284)            80%
422000 Recology Fund 35,000                  ‐                    35,000                 ‐                29,024                 (5,976)            83%
441419 Building Permit 16,500                  ‐                    62,500                 46,000          62,210                 (290)               100%
450000 Misc Fees 1,000                    ‐                    1,000                   ‐                ‐                       (1,000)            0%
450455 Library Fines and Fees 10,400                  ‐                    10,400                 ‐                5,855                   (4,545)            56%

278,650                ‐                    324,650               46,000          198,285               (126,365)       61%
Intergovernmental

436000 Liquor Tax 23,000                  ‐                    23,000                 ‐                13,724                 (9,276)            60%
437000 Cigarette Tax 2,800                    ‐                    2,800                   ‐                1,459                   (1,341)            52%
438000 State Revenue Sharing 13,000                  ‐                    13,000                 ‐                8,434                   (4,566)            65%
439000 WCCLS  99,405                  ‐                    99,405                 ‐                66,273                 (33,132)         67%

138,205                ‐                    138,205               ‐                89,891                 (48,314)         65%
Fines and Forfeitures

450421 Police Citations 52,229                  ‐                    52,229                 ‐                32,354                 (19,875)         62%
52,229                  ‐                    52,229                 ‐                32,354                 (19,875)         62%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

8

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110 Adopted  ISF Adopted   Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014  2013‐2014   2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

Grants and Donations
431000 Grants ‐ General ‐                        ‐                    5,500                   5,500            6,250                   750                114%
431001 Grants ‐ Police 9,000                    ‐                    38,500                 29,500          13,270                 (25,230)         34%
431002 Grants ‐ Library 1,000                    ‐                    29,891                 28,891          8,350                   (21,541)         28%
431003 Grants ‐ Planning ‐                        ‐                    1,000                   1,000            1,000                   ‐                 100%
464000 Donations ‐ General ‐                        ‐                    ‐                      ‐                200                      200                100%
464101 4th of July don/spon 14,000                  ‐                    14,000                 ‐                1,730                   (12,270)         12%
464102 Comm Events Don/spon ‐                        ‐                    15,141                 15,141          5,920                   (9,221)            39%
464421 Donations ‐ Police ‐                        ‐                    1,700                   1,700            200                      (1,500)            12%
464455 Donations ‐ Library 6,500                    ‐                    7,000                   500               6,613                   (387)               94%

30,500                  ‐                    112,732               82,232          43,532                 (69,200)         39%
461000 Interest 4,410                    ‐                    4,410                   ‐                3,127                   (1,283)            71%
440000 Miscellaneous 10,000                  ‐                    10,000                 ‐                7,737                   (2,263)            77%
445000 Sale of asset 6,000                    ‐                    6,000                   ‐                5,000                   (1,000)            83%

Transfers
820111 Transfers In ‐ Rec. Street 62,000                  ‐                    62,000                 ‐                62,000                 ‐                 100%
820111x Transfers In ‐ Street ‐                        169,966           175,449               5,483            ‐                       (175,449)       0%
820210 Transfers In ‐ Water ‐                        502,724           458,428               (44,295)        ‐                       (458,428)       0%
820130 Transfers In ‐ TDT ‐                        4,000                   4,000            ‐                       (4,000)            0%
820131 Transfers In ‐ Parks Cap ‐                        8,400                   8,400            ‐                       (8,400)            0%
820113 Transfers In ‐ URA ‐                        8,086                ‐                       (8,086)           0%

62,000                  680,775           708,277               (34,498)        62,000                 (646,277)       9%
840000 Debt Proceeds ‐                        ‐                    35,803                 35,803          35,803                 ‐                 100%

TOTAL REVENUES 941,916               680,775           1,752,228           129,537        800,107              (952,121)       46%

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

9

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110 Adopted  ISF Adopted   Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014  2013‐2014   2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

EXPENDITURES ‐ BY DEPT

110‐411 Culture and Recreation ‐                        25,850             52,461                 26,611          32,337                 20,124           62%
110‐419 General Government ‐                        545,670           597,094               51,424          358,367               238,726        60%
110‐421 Police 433,170                ‐                    454,844               21,674          287,500               167,345        63%
110‐433 Public Works ‐                        415,861           399,470               (16,391)        230,937               168,533        58%
110‐452 Parks 169,650                ‐                    19,760                 (149,890)       5,834                   13,926           30%
110‐455 Library 247,368                ‐                    224,210               (23,158)        109,672               114,538        49%
110‐465 Planning 78,724                  5,000                40,850                 (42,874)        7,433                   33,417           18%
Trans Transfers Out ‐                        (311,606)          ‐                       311,606        ‐                       ‐                 0%
SP Special Payment‐ URA loan ‐                        ‐                    185,000               185,000        185,000               ‐                 100%

CONTINGENCY 100,000                ‐                    85,000                 (15,000)        ‐                       85,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,028,912            680,775           2,058,689           349,002        1,217,080           841,609        59%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (86,996)                0                       (306,461)             (219,465)       (416,973)             841,609       

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 930,904               0                       772,746              (158,158)       662,234              1,683,218    

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

10

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐411 

Culture and Recreation:  

‐ Increase in personnel for 4th of July event planning and volunteer coordination.   
‐ Increase in 4th of July event for expenses related to 2014 event.  
‐ Increase in Music Shows for donation expense. This is offset by the revenue collected by the City which funds the donation. So far 

this year Music Shows have raised $705 for the North Plains Senior Center/Food Bank and $415 for the Friends of the North Plains 
Public Library.  

‐ Addition of the BBQ event. This is offset with additional donation revenue.  

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

11

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 98



CULTURE AND RECREATION 110‐411 Adopted ISF Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries ‐                        ‐                  6,000                   6,000             2,313                   3,687             39%
220000 Payroll Taxes ‐                        ‐                  1,327                   1,327             189                      1,138             14%
230000 Retirement ‐                        ‐                  865                      865                214                      650                25%

PERSONAL SERVICES ‐                        ‐                  8,191                   8,191             2,716                   5,475             33%

300100 Community Events ‐                        ‐                 1,000                   1,000             967                      33                  97%
300101 4th of July ‐                        19,000           24,000                 5,000             21,137                 2,863             88%
300102 Concerts in the Park ‐                        900                 2,100                   1,200             2,054                   46                  98%
300103 Music Shows ‐                        1,200             2,320                   1,120             1,401                   919                60%
300106 Fall Festival (Pumpkin Run) ‐                        3,000             3,100                   100                3,063                   37                  99%
300107 Chili Cookoff ‐                        300                 500                      200                492                      8                     98%
300108 National Night Out ‐                        600                 400                      (200)               384                      16                  96%
300109 Playdates ‐                        150                 150                      ‐                38                        112                25%
300111 Ice Cream Social ‐                        300                 300                      ‐                ‐                       300                0%
300112 Farmers' Market ‐                        300                 300                      ‐                ‐                       300                0%
300113 Holiday Bazaar ‐                        100                 100                      ‐                85                        15                  85%
300114 BBQ ‐                        ‐                 10,000                 10,000           ‐                       10,000           0%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES ‐                        25,850           44,270                18,420           29,621                14,649          67%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ‐                        25,850           52,461                26,611           32,337                20,124          62%

Variance Pos / (Neg)
Supp Budget to Actuals

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

12

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐419 

General Government:  

‐ Increase in salaries includes new Management Analyst position, step increases for Account Clerk II and Clerical, and hours increase 
for Finance Manager.  Employee benefits increased due to changes in benefits elections.  Payroll taxes decreased due to lower SUI 
rate.  PERS increased due to salary increases, but also decreased due to a lower PERS rate.    

‐ Increase for City Recorder training (previously none was budgeted).   
‐ Increase for donation to the Senior Center for CWS fees.    
‐ Increase for annual BUG connection fee.   
‐ Decrease in attorney based on current year usage.  
‐ Decrease in audit fees due to Finance Manager drafting the reports.   
‐ Increase for Springbrook upgrade.   
‐ Decrease in contracted Recorder expenses due to reclassification of Account Clerk II to City Recorder.   
‐ Decrease in workers’ compensation insurance premium.   
‐ Various other small changes to reflect cost changes and expected usage.  

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

13

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 98



GENERAL GOVERNMENT 110‐419 Adopted ISF Adopted  Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014  2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries ‐                        249,354         285,301               35,947          155,428               129,873        54%
210000 Employee Benefits ‐                        33,835           39,731                 5,896            28,032                 11,699           71%
220000 Payroll Taxes ‐                        30,196           26,498                 (3,698)           14,297                 12,201           54%
230000 Retirement ‐                        39,756           41,112                 1,356            18,570                 22,542           45%

PERSONAL SERVICES ‐                        353,141        392,642              39,501          216,327              176,314        55%

300000 Education and Training ‐                        7,500             8,500                   1,000            5,754                   2,746             68%
300105 Donations
300105 Senior Center Donation 1,000             8,900                   7,900            8,855                   45                   99%
300105 Community Action Don.  500                500                      ‐                ‐                       500                0%

‐                        1,500             9,400                   7,900            8,855                   545                94%
300010 BUG Connection ‐                        2,000             9,000                   7,000            7,668                   1,332             85%
310000 Utilities ‐                        16,602           16,602                 ‐                7,612                   8,990             46%
330000 Professional Services
330000 Attorney ‐                        25,000           20,000                 (5,000)           9,023                   10,977           45%
330000 Audit ‐                        13,000           9,000                   (4,000)           8,250                   750                92%
330000 Springbrook ‐                        15,000                 15,000          6,749                   8,251             45%
330000 IT Services ‐                        11,900           11,900                 ‐                5,936                   5,964             50%
330000 IT Services ‐ hardware ‐                        ‐                       ‐                380                      (380)               100%
330000 Moonlight ‐                        10,500           10,500                 ‐                7,152                   3,348             68%
330000 Recorder ‐                        6,000             ‐                       (6,000)           ‐                       ‐                 0%
330000 Payroll Processing ‐                        3,600             3,600                   ‐                2,800                   800                78%
330000 Janitorial ‐ City Hall ‐                        2,400             2,400                   ‐                1,540                   860                64%
330000 Security ‐ City Hall ‐                        1,200             2,520                   1,320            1,470                   1,050             58%
330000 Other ‐                        3,500             3,500                   ‐                2,458                   1,042             70%

‐                        77,100           78,420                 1,320            45,758                 32,662           58%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

14

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 98



GENERAL GOVERNMENT 110‐419 Adopted ISF Adopted  Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014  2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

340000 Repairs and Maintenance
340000 Copier Usage/Main. ‐                        11,880           9,000                   (2,880)           3,836                   5,164             43%
340000 HVAC ‐                        3,720             3,720                   ‐                2,163                   1,557             58%
340000 Other ‐                        5,000             5,000                   ‐                2,042                   2,958             41%

‐                        20,600           17,720                 (2,880)          8,041                   9,679             45%
350000 Agency Memberships ‐                        3,660             3,660                   ‐                3,499                   161                96%
380000 Miscellaneous ‐                        ‐                 500                      500               390                      110                78%
500000 Employee/ Vol Recognition ‐                        1,100             1,500                   400               1,471                   29                   98%
540000 Advertising ‐                        1,000             800                      (200)              567                      233                71%
610000 Supplies ‐                        13,350           13,350                 ‐                9,456                   3,894             71%
621000 Insurance ‐                        26,711           27,500                 789               27,444                 56                   100%
621002 Workers' Compensation ‐                        21,406           17,500                 (3,906)           15,525                 1,975             89%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES ‐                        192,529        204,452              11,923          142,040              62,412           69%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ‐                        545,670        597,094              51,424          358,367              238,726        60%

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

15

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐421 

Police:  

‐ Increase in salaries includes a step increase for the Police Chief and hours increase for Reserves based on an increased ODOT grant.  
Employee benefits increased due to changes in benefits elections.  Payroll taxes and PERS decreased due to lower SUI and PERS 
rates.   

‐ Increase in training offset by a decrease in firearms.  
‐ Increase in professional services based on cost and usage. The original budget for this line item was reduced $2.5k from the prior 

year but expected cost savings were not achieved.   
‐ Increase  in  repairs and maintenance based on expected costs. This  line  item was  reduced $5k  from  the prior year, based on 

expected savings because the vehicles are new. While the costs are down significantly, actual expenses indicate the budget needed 
to increase slightly.  

‐ Increase in supplies for the Hood to Coast run, offset by donations.  
‐ Decrease in uniforms based on cost and usage.  
‐ Increase in equipment for the security camera, offset by a CIS grant.   
‐ Increase  in  capital outlay  for  the  capital  lease on  the 2014 Dodge Charger.   The  lease payment was originally budgeted but 

accounting rules require the full amount of the capital lease to be reported as debt proceeds and capital outlay.   
‐ Decrease in transfers out due to the elimination of the ISF.   

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

16

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 98



POLICE 110‐421 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 138,553                142,350               3,797                   72,178                  70,172           51%
120000 Hourly 36,799                  36,799                 (0)                           18,512                  18,286           50%
125000 Reserves 10,000                  32,000                 22,000                 23,181                  8,819             72%
210000 Employee Benefits 13,970                  21,514                 7,544                   10,997                  10,517           51%
220000 Payroll Taxes 22,446                  20,484                 (1,962)                  10,492                  9,992             51%
230000 Retirement 42,565                  38,927                 (3,637)                  21,431                  17,496           55%

PERSONAL SERVICES 264,333               292,074              27,741                 156,792               135,282        54%

300000 Education and Training 3,000                    5,200                   2,200                   5,524                    (324)               106%
330000 Professional Services
330000 Wireless Access 4,200                    4,200                   ‐                        1,639                    2,561             39%
330000 Webleds 1,575                    1,575                   ‐                        1,575                    ‐                 100%
330000 HPD Evidence Storage 1,500                    2,600                   1,100                   2,547                    53                   98%
330000 Law Enforcement Manual ‐                        2,000                   2,000                   1,950                    50                   98%
330000 E‐ticket 3,750                    2,000                   (1,750)                  1,970                    30                   99%
330000 Other 3,000                    4,500                   1,500                   3,964                    536                88%

14,025                  16,875                 2,850                   13,645                  3,230             81%
330912 WA County Dispatch 12,060                  12,060                 ‐                        9,045                    3,015             75%
340000 Repairs and Maintenance 5,000                    6,000                   1,000                   5,130                    870                85%
350000 Agency Memberships 1,500                    1,500                   ‐                        664                       836                44%
370000 Rentals and Leases
370000 Chevy Tahoe 11,458                  11,458                 ‐                        11,458                  ‐                 100%
370000 Dodge Charger 13,493                  13,493                 ‐                        ‐                        13,493           0%
370000 Dodge V8 Charger 9,181                    9,181                   ‐                        9,181                    ‐                 100%
370000 Other 1,000                    1,000                   ‐                        402                       598                40%

35,132                  35,132                 ‐                        21,041                  14,091           60%
610000 Supplies 10,000                  13,200                 3,200                   10,883                  2,317             82%
610100 Uniforms 4,500                    3,500                   (1,000)                  2,856                    644                82%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

17

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 98



POLICE 110‐421 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

610224 Fuel 12,500                  12,500                 ‐                        8,044                    4,456             64%
630000 Equipment (non‐capital) ‐                 0%
630000 Firearms 7,000                    4,800                   (2,200)                  5,384                    (584)               112%
630000 Radio 3,000                    3,000                   ‐                        2,475                    525                83%
630000 Camera ‐                        5,000                   5,000                   3,985                    1,015             80%
630000 Other ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        0                            (0)                   100%

10,000                  12,800                 2,800                   11,844                  956                93%
207000 Court Pass Through 3,000                    3,000                   ‐                        1,029                    1,971             34%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 110,717               121,767              11,050                 89,705                  32,063           74%

770000 Equipment/Vehicles ‐                        35,803                 35,803                 35,803                  ‐                 100%

CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐                        35,803                 35,803                 35,803                  ‐                 100%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Equip Res.  5,200                    5,200                   ‐                        5,200                    ‐                 100%
810610 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  52,920                  ‐                       (52,920)               ‐                        ‐                 0%

TRANSFERS 58,120                  5,200                   (52,920)               5,200                    ‐                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 433,170               454,844              21,674                 287,500               167,345        63%

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

18

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐433 

Public Works:  

‐ Increase in salaries includes step increases for the Public Works Director, Utility Worker III and Utility Worker II.  Employee benefits 
decreased due to changes in benefits elections.  Payroll taxes and PERS decreased due to lower SUI and PERS rates.      

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

19

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 98



PUBLIC WORKS 110‐433 Adopted  ISF Adopted   Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014  2013‐2014   2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries ‐                        248,816          251,463               2,647            142,717               108,746        57%
210000 Employee Benefits ‐                        39,728             38,284                 (1,444)           27,185                 11,098           71%
220000 Payroll Taxes ‐                        30,132             22,914                 (7,218)           12,715                 10,199           55%
230000 Retirement ‐                        56,165             45,789                 (10,376)        26,774                 19,015           58%

PERSONAL SERVICES ‐                        374,841          358,450              (16,391)        209,391              149,059        58%

300000 Education and Training ‐                        2,300               2,300                   ‐                296                      2,004             13%
310000 Utilities ‐                        1,320               1,320                   ‐                499                      821                38%
330000 Professional Services ‐                        1,600               1,600                   ‐                161                      1,439             10%
340000 Repairs and Maintenance ‐                        15,000             15,000                 ‐                6,152                   8,848             41%
610000 Supplies ‐                        2,000               2,000                   ‐                2,027                   (27)                 101%
610090 Uniforms ‐                        1,000               1,000                   ‐                150                      850                15%
610224 Fuel ‐                        10,800             10,800                 ‐                5,262                   5,538             49%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES ‐                        34,020             34,020                 ‐                14,546                 19,474           43%

810009 Transfers ‐ Veh Reserve ‐                        7,000               7,000                   ‐                7,000                   ‐                 100%

TRANSFERS ‐                        7,000               7,000                   ‐                7,000                   ‐                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ‐                        415,861          399,470              (16,391)        230,937              168,533        58%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

20

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐452 

Parks:  

‐ Decrease in repairs and maintenance based on amount incurred to date.   
‐ Decrease in transfers out due to the elimination of the ISF.   

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

21

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 98



PARKS 110‐452 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

310000 Utilities 5,160                    5,160                   ‐                        2,828                    2,332             55%
330000 Professional Services 600                       600                      ‐                        ‐                        600                0%
340000 Repairs and Maintenance 15,000                  8,000                   (7,000)                  1,455                    6,545             18%
610000 Supplies 6,000                    6,000                   ‐                        1,551                    4,449             26%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 26,760                  19,760                 (7,000)                  5,834                    13,926           30%

810000 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  142,890                ‐                       (142,890)             ‐                        ‐                 0%

TRANSFERS 142,890               ‐                       (142,890)             ‐                        ‐                 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 169,650               19,760                 (149,890)             5,834                    13,926           30%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

22

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐455 

Library:  

‐ Increase  in salaries  includes step  increase for the Volunteer Coordinator, new Cataloger position (replacing Margaret Reh) and 
salary expense related to Cover Oregon, which is covered by the grant. Employee benefits decreased due to a policy change, which 
disallows benefits for employees working under 30 hours/week.  Payroll taxes and PERS increased in relation to salary changes, 
offset by lower SUI and PERS rates.  

‐ Increase in education and training and supplies is part of the Cover Oregon education program and offset by grant revenue.   
‐ Increase in library supplies is offset by a donation.   
‐ Decrease in transfers out due to the elimination of the ISF.   

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

23

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 98



LIBRARY 110‐455 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 116,055                140,623               24,567                 71,331                 69,291           51%
210000 Employee Benefits 395                       255                      (140)                     255                      (0)                   100%
220000 Payroll Taxes 14,054                  15,184                 1,130                   7,018                   8,166             46%
230000 Retirement 16,594                  16,198                 (396)                     7,240                   8,957             45%

PERSONAL SERVICES 147,099               172,260              25,161                 85,845                 86,414           50%

300000 Education and Training 500                       1,970                   1,470                   401                      1,569             20%
310000 Utilities 8,160                    8,160                   ‐                        3,918                   4,242             48%
330000 Professional Services
330000 Computer Software 2,000                    2,000                   ‐                        1,449                   551                72%
330000 Janitorial 2,100                    2,100                   ‐                        1,050                   1,050             50%
330000 Security 770                       770                      ‐                        473                      298                61%
330000 Other 450                       450                      ‐                        102                      348                23%

5,320                    5,320                   ‐                        3,074                   2,246             58%
340000 Repairs and Maintenance
340000 Building Maintenance 3,000                    3,000                   ‐                        63                         2,937             2%
340000 HVAC Maintenance 2,000                    2,000                   ‐                        ‐                       2,000             0%
340000 Copier Maintenance 2,600                    2,600                   ‐                        1,350                   1,250             52%

7,600                    7,600                   ‐                        1,413                   6,187             19%
610000 Supplies 11,250                  13,700                 2,450                   5,865                   7,835             43%
640000 Library Supplies 13,100                  13,600                 500                       7,556                   6,044             56%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 45,930                  50,350                 4,420                   22,227                 28,123           44%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Equip Res. 1,600                    1,600                   ‐                        1,600                   ‐                 100%
810610 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  52,739                  ‐                       (52,739)               ‐                       ‐                 0%

TRANSFERS 54,339                  1,600                   (52,739)               1,600                   ‐                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 247,368               224,210              (23,158)               109,672              114,538        49%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

24

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 98



GENERAL FUND 110‐465 

Planning:  

‐ Decrease in salaries due to elimination of Assistant Planner position.  
‐ Increase in engineering fees due to new planning and building work, covered by increased building permits.   
‐ Decrease in transfers out due to the elimination of the ISF.   

 

 

 

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

25

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 98



PLANNING 110‐465 Adopted  ISF Adopted   Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014  2013‐2014   2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 7,498                    ‐                       (7,498)            ‐                       ‐                 0%
220000 Payroll Taxes 908                       ‐                       (908)              ‐                       ‐                 0%
230000 Retirement 1,410                    ‐                       (1,410)            ‐                       ‐                 0%

PERSONAL SERVICES 9,816                    ‐                       (9,816)            ‐                       ‐                 0%

300000 Education and Training 100                       100                      ‐                500                      (400)               500%
330000 Professional Services 3,750                    5,000              38,750                 30,000           6,828                   31,922           182%
360000 Advertising 2,000                    2,000                   ‐                105                      1,895             5%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 5,850                    5,000              40,850                 30,000           7,433                   33,417           18%

810000 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  63,057                  ‐                       (63,057)         ‐                       ‐                 0%

TRANSFERS 63,057                  ‐                       (63,057)         ‐                       ‐                 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 78,724                  5,000              40,850                 (42,874)         7,433                   33,417           18%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

26

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 98



STREET FUND 111 

This fund accounts for Oregon gasoline tax apportionments, Street System Development Charges, grants and expenditures for street 
maintenance and improvements.     

Supplemental budget changes:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  
‐ Increase of SDC revenue based on increased number of new builds.       
‐ Decrease in grant revenue, which was budgeted to be received equally in both years but was mostly received in FY13.    
‐ Increase in miscellaneous revenue for a credit for LED street lights.   
‐ Decrease in supplies based on current year usage.  
‐ Increase in capital outlay for the Claxtar Street project. Unexpected changes resulted in increased costs with the contractor and 

the engineering firm.  Total project budget (over three years) was approx $645k and estimated final costs are approx $810k, for 
an  increase of approx. $165k.   Total grant revenue was approx $445k, therefore net costs to the City were approx $365k. The 
budget  for  other  street  projects  was  reduced  to  offset  some  of  this  increase,  however  some  budget  was  retained  for 
reimbursement to DR Horton for street work on the Highland Court development.        

‐ Increase of Transfers Out. The elimination of the ISF was replaced with a transfer to the General Fund for General Government 
and Public Works staff, staff time related to capital outlay and shared supplies.  See Transfer page for more detail.   

‐ The contingency was reduced to zero to offset the decrease in grant revenue.    

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

27

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 98



STREET FUND 111 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 513,369               570,236              56,867                 570,236              ‐                

REVENUES

Licenses, Permits, Fees
435003 TUF 25,200                  25,200                 ‐                        14,872                 (10,328)         59%
445000 SDCs 12,950                  20,720                 7,770                   12,044                 (8,677)            58%

38,150                  45,920                 7,770                   26,915                 (19,005)         59%
Intergovernmental

435001 Gas Tax ‐ State 108,000                108,000               ‐                        69,018                 (38,982)         64%
435002 Gas Tax ‐ County 7,500                    7,500                   ‐                        4,433                   (3,067)            59%

115,500                115,500               ‐                        73,451                 (42,049)         64%
431110 Grants ‐ Claxtar 268,000                52,000                 (216,000)             52,132                 132                100%
461000 Interest 2,900                    2,900                   ‐                        749                      (2,151)            26%
440000 Miscellaneous 1,000                    6,500                   5,500                   6,506                   6                     100%

TOTAL REVENUES 425,550               222,820              (202,730)             159,754              (63,066)         72%

EXPENDITURES

360000 Advertising 400                       400                      ‐                        ‐                       400                0%
610000 Supplies 6,000                    2,000                   (4,000)                  ‐                       2,000             0%
640000 Street Lights 27,552                  27,552                 ‐                        14,017                 13,535           51%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 33,952                  29,952                 (4,000)                  14,017                 15,935           47%

770101 Claxtar Project 268,000                401,000               133,000               360,982               40,018           90%
770103 Street Projects 100,000                15,000                 (85,000)               13,468                 1,532             90%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 368,000               416,000              48,000                 374,450              41,550           90%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

28

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 98



STREET FUND 111 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

810110 Transfers Out ‐Rec. to GF 62,000                  62,000                 ‐                        62,000                 ‐                 100%
810110x Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund  ‐                        175,449               175,449               ‐                       175,449        0%
810610 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  169,966                ‐                       (169,966)             ‐                       ‐                 0%

TRANSFERS 231,966               237,449              5,483                   62,000                 175,449        26%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                  ‐                       (50,000)               ‐                       ‐                 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 683,918               683,401              (517)                     450,467              232,933        66%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (258,368)              (460,581)             (202,213)             (290,713)             169,867       

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 255,001               109,655              (145,346)             279,523              169,867       

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

29

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 98



WATER FUND 210 

This fund accounts for the activities of providing water service to the public, including capital improvements and major acquisitions. 

As part of this supplemental budget management  is proposing that Council approve a resolution committing System Development 
Charges to capital projects.  This will formally establish a Committed fund balance line to track SDC revenue less capital expenditures, 
in both internal documents and the annual financial statements. This is the highest level of constraint that can be placed by Council, 
and will remain in place until Council formally removes it. The Committed fund balance will consist of the fund balance transferred 
from the Water Capital Fund into the Water Fund in FY13, plus SDC revenue less capital expenditures incurred in FY13 and FY14.       

Supplemental budget changes:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  
‐ Increase of SDC revenue based on increased number of new builds.       
‐ Increase in Materials and Services to reflect costs for new water service and JWC SDCs pass through to WA County, both funded 

by additional revenue. Transfer from Repairs and Maintenance to Supplies.    
‐ Increase of PW Projects by $64k for reimbursement to DR Horton for water construction. The reimbursement was based on SDCs 

paid by DR Horton in FY13 and FY14 for the Highland Court development.    
‐ Decrease of Transfers Out. The elimination of the ISF was replaced with a transfer to the General Fund for General Government 

and Public Works staff, staff time related to capital outlay and shared supplies.  See Transfer page for more detail.   
 

    

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

30

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 98



WATER FUND 210 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Committed to Capital Projects 99,073                  188,574              89,501                 188,574               ‐                     
Unassigned 648,764               723,536              74,772                 723,536               ‐                     

OPENING FUND BALANCE 747,837               912,110              164,273              912,110               ‐                     

REVENUES

Charges for Services
444000 Charges, Fees, Fines 805,977               805,977              ‐                       519,772               (286,205)            64%
445000 SDCs (Capital) 107,450               181,920              74,470                 110,673               (71,248)              61%
207000 SDCs ‐ Pass thru JWC 72,700                  126,320              53,620                 77,045                  (49,275)              61%

986,127               1,114,217           128,090              707,490               (406,727)            63%
461000 Interest 3,845                    3,845                   ‐                       2,359                    (1,486)                 61%
440000 Miscellaneous 200                       200                      ‐                       7                            (193)                    4%

TOTAL REVENUES 990,172               1,118,262           128,090              709,857               (408,406)            63%

EXPENDITURES

208150 Franchise Fee ‐Water 39,000                  39,000                 ‐                       39,000                  ‐                      100%
310000 Utilities 5,130                    5,130                   ‐                       3,425                    1,705                  67%
330000 Professional Services
330000 Meter Reader 1,000                    1,000                   ‐                       989                       11                       99%
330000 Alexin Laboratory 2,250                    2,250                   ‐                       764                       1,486                  34%
330000 Other 6,000                    6,000                   ‐                       ‐                        6,000                  0%

9,250                    9,250                   ‐                       1,753                    7,497                  19%
340000 Repairs and Maintenance 20,000                  15,000                 (5,000)                 2,275                    12,725                15%
610000 Supplies 2,500                    7,500                   5,000                   5,603                    1,897                  75%
610600 Water Purchase 120,000               120,000              ‐                       70,429                  49,571                59%
630000 New Water Service Materials ‐                        5,000                   5,000                   2,748                    2,252                  55%
207000 SDC Pass Thru JWC 72,700                  126,320              53,620                 75,608                  50,712                60%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 268,580               327,200              58,620                200,840               126,360             61%

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

31

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 98



WATER FUND 210 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

770000 PW Projects 51,000                  115,000              64,000                 110,200               4,800                  96%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 51,000                 115,000              64,000                110,200               4,800                  96%

500500 Debt Service ‐ 2005 Bond 134,332               134,332              ‐                       134,332               0                          100%

DEBT SERVICE 134,332               134,332              ‐                       134,332               0                          100%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund ‐                        458,428              458,428              ‐                        458,428             0%
810610 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  502,724               ‐                       (502,724)             ‐                        ‐                      0%

TRANSFERS 502,724               458,428              (44,296)               ‐                        458,428             0%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                  50,000                 ‐                       ‐                        50,000                0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,006,636            1,084,960           78,324                445,372               639,589             41%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (16,464)                33,302                49,766                264,485               231,183            

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 731,373               945,412              214,039              1,176,595            231,183            

Committed to Capital Projects 155,523               255,494              99,971                 189,047               (66,447)             
Unassigned 575,850               689,918              114,068              987,548               297,630            

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

32

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 98



TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND 130 

This fund collects TDT tax on building activity for the construction of new streets.  TDT rates are set by Washington County.   

Supplemental budget changes:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  
‐ Increase  of  SDC  revenue  based  on  increased  number  of  new  builds.  In  addition,  the  original  budget was  based  on  a  lower 

townhouse fee, but new houses this year have been single family detached.   
‐ Increase of Transfers Out to the General Fund for allocation of General Government overhead costs.  This allocation is based on 

capital expenditures in this fund which resulted in City Manager, Public Works Director and Finance staff time.   
 

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

33

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 98



TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND 130 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 173,836              263,325              89,489                 263,325              ‐                

REVENUES

415100 TDT  99,400                 266,600               167,200               146,532               (120,068)       55%
461000 Interest 420                      420                      ‐                       739                      319                176%

TOTAL REVENUES 99,820                 267,020              167,200               147,271              (119,749)       55%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 50,000                 50,000                 ‐                       32,677                 17,323           65%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000                 50,000                 ‐                       32,677                 17,323           65%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund ‐                       4,000                   4,000                   ‐                       4,000             0%

TRANSFERS ‐                       4,000                   4,000                   ‐                       4,000             0%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                 50,000                 ‐                       ‐                       50,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100,000              104,000              4,000                   32,677                 71,323           31%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (180)                     163,020              163,200               114,594              (48,426)        

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 173,656              426,345              252,689               377,919              (48,426)        

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

34

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 98



PARKS CAPITAL FUND 131 

This fund collects System Development Charges on building activity for the construction and upgrade of parks.   

Supplemental budget changes:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  
‐ Increase of SDC revenue based on increased number of new builds.  
‐ Increase of PW Projects by $30k for reimbursement to DR Horton for construction of new park.  The reimbursement was based 

on SDCs paid by DR Horton in FY13 and FY14 for the Highland Court development.    
‐ Increase of Transfers Out to the General Fund for allocation of General Government overhead costs.  This allocation is based on 

capital expenditures in this fund which resulted in City Manager, Public Works Director and Finance staff time.   

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

35

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 98



PARKS CAPITAL FUND 131 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 391,517               458,181              66,664                 458,181               ‐                

REVENUES

445000 SDCs 97,750                  156,400               58,650                 90,908                  (65,493)         58%
461000 Interest 1,925                    1,925                   ‐                        1,228                    (697)               64%

TOTAL REVENUES 99,675                  158,325              58,650                 92,135                  (66,190)         58%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 75,000                  105,000               30,000                 94,660                  10,340           90%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 75,000                  105,000              30,000                 94,660                  10,340           90%

810000 Transfers Out ‐ ISF Alloc.  ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                        ‐                 0%
810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund ‐                        8,400                   8,400                   ‐                        8,400             0%

TRANSFERS ‐                        8,400                   8,400                   ‐                        8,400             0%

CONTINGENCY 100,000                100,000               ‐                        ‐                        100,000        0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,000               213,400              38,400                 94,660                  118,740        44%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (75,325)                (55,075)               20,250                 (2,525)                   52,550          

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 316,192                403,106                86,914                   455,656                52,550            

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

36

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 98



TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 132 

This fund was the predecessor to the Transportation Development Tax Fund.  Funds can only be used for projects that expand 
transportation capacity.   

Supplemental budget changes:  

- Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  

  

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

37

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 98



TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 132 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 287,033               287,669              636                      287,669               ‐                

REVENUES

461000 Interest 1,435                    1,435                   ‐                        767                       (668)               53%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,435                    1,435                   ‐                        767                       (668)               53%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 50,000                  50,000                 ‐                        ‐                        50,000           0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000                  50,000                 ‐                        ‐                        50,000           0%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                  50,000                 ‐                        ‐                        50,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100,000               100,000              ‐                        ‐                        100,000        0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (98,565)                (98,565)               ‐                        767                       99,332          

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 188,468               189,104              636                      288,436               99,332          

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

38

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 98



VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND 009 

This fund is used to build reserves for future vehicle and equipment purchases. Current year transfers include $1,600 from Library, 
$5,200 from Police and $7,000 from Public Works.   

Supplemental budget changes:  

‐ Adjustment of Beginning Fund Balance to match FY13 Ending Fund Balance.  

   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

39

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 98



VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND 009 Adopted Supplemental Budget Actuals
Budget Budget Changes Through

Account Description 2013‐2014 2013‐2014 Inc / (Dec) 1/31/2014 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 25,488                 25,580                 92                         25,580                 ‐                

REVENUES

461000 Interest 225                      225                      ‐                       74                         (151)               33%
820110 Transfers In 13,800                 13,800                 ‐                       13,800                 ‐                 100%

TOTAL REVENUES 14,025                 14,025                 ‐                       13,874                 (151)               99%

EXPENDITURES

CONTINGENCY 10,000                 10,000                 ‐                       ‐                       10,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,000                 10,000                 ‐                       ‐                       10,000           0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,025                   4,025                   ‐                       13,874                 9,849            

UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE 29,513                 29,605                 92                         39,454                 9,849            

Supp Budget to Actuals
Variance Pos / (Neg)

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

40

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 98



TRANSFERS 

Transfers are used to allocate shared costs from the General Fund to other funds.  The allocation amount is determined in one of two 
ways:  

‐  As a percentage of the total cost of an item in the General Fund.  For example, 10% of General Government Personal Services 
(including City Manager, Deputy City Recorder and Finance) is allocated to the Street Fund.  This represents the cost of regular staff 
and supplies charged to the General Fund that is in support of another fund. These percentages will be reviewed annually.   

‐  As a percentage of capital expenditures incurred in another fund.  For example, 8% of Street Capital Outlay is recorded as a 
transfer  from  the Street Fund  to  the General Fund.   This  represents  that capital expenditures  in another  fund  require additional 
General Fund staff resources for management, review and reconciliation of the capital project.   

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget April 7, 2014

41

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 98



TRANSFERS

Street Fund to General Fund
for staff and supplies charged to the General Fund
General Government: 
Personal Services 392,642                                          10% 39,264                                           
Professional  Services 82,100                                            10% 8,210                                             
Insurance 26,711                                            10% 2,671                                             

Public Works:
Personal Services 358,450                                          25% 89,612                                           
Fuel 10,800                                            25% 2,700                                             

for staff time related to capital outlay
Street Capital Outlay 386,000                                          8% 30,880                                           

173,338                                        
Water Fund to General Fund previous ISF allocation was $169,966
for staff and supplies charged to the General Fund
General Government: 
Personal Services 392,642                                          30% 117,792                                         
Professional  Services 82,100                                            30% 24,630                                           
Professional  Services ‐ Moonlight 7,500                                             
Insurance 26,711                                            30% 8,013                                             

Public Works:
Personal Services 358,450                                          80% 286,760                                         
Fuel 10,800                                            50% 5,400                                             

for staff time related to capital outlay
Water Capital Outlay 115,000                                          8% 9,200                                             

459,296                                        
TDT Fund to General Fund previous ISF allocation was $502,724
for staff time related to capital outlay

TDT Capital Outlay 50,000                                            8% 4,000                                             

Parks Capital Fund to General Fund
for staff time related to capital outlay

Parks Capital Outlay 105,000                                          8% 8,400                                             

City of North Plains 

FY2013-14 Supplemental Budget March 3, 2014

41

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 98



Resolution No: 1819 

2013-14 Supplemental Budget 

Adopted: April 7, 2014 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 1819 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, ADOPTING THE 2013-14 SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET 

 
 WHEREAS,  the City Council adopted a budget, made appropriations and levied 
taxes for fiscal year 2013-2014 through Resolution No. 1789 on June 4, 2013; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has determined that a supplemental budget is 
necessary to adjust the current approved budget. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Adopts a supplemental budget for the remainder of fiscal year 
2013-14 now on file in the Office of the City Manager.  

 
Section 2. The amounts as shown below are hereby appropriated for 

fiscal year 2013-14 for the following purposes: 
 

General Fund  
Culture and Recreation $       52,461 
General Government 597,094 
Police 454,844 
Public Works 399,470 
Parks 19,760 
Library 224,210 
Planning 40,850 
Contingency 65,000 

Total $  1,853,689 
  
Street Fund  
Materials and Services $       29,952 
Capital Outlay 416,000 
Transfers 237,449 

Total $     683,401 
  
Water Fund  
Materials and Services $     327,200 
Capital Outlay 115,000 
Debt Service 134,332 
Transfers 458,428 
Contingency 50,000 

Total $ 1,084,960 
  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 98



Resolution No: 1819 

2013-14 Supplemental Budget 

Adopted: April 7, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Transportation Dev. Tax Fund  
Capital Outlay $     50,000 
Transfers 4,000 
Contingency 50,000 

Total $   104,000 
  
Parks Capital Fund  
Capital Outlay $   105,000 
Transfers 8,400 
Contingency 100,000 

Total $   213,400 
  
Internal Service Fund  
City Council $              0 
City Attorney 0 
City Manager 0 
City Recorder 0 
Finance 0 
City Engineer 0 
General Government 0 
Public Works 0 

Total $              0 
  

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 98



City of North Plains
DR Horton SDC Reconciliation
March 31, 2014

Total number of builds 26                   

Transp SDC Water SDC Parks SDC TDT SDC TOTAL
SDC cost per build (City SDC only) 518                  4,298             3,910             6,665               15,391          
SDC revenue 13,468            111,748         101,660         173,290           400,166        

DR Horton cost of improvements 47,061            110,200         155,955         32,677             345,893        

Amount reimbursed to DR Horton 13,468            110,200         101,660         32,677             258,005        
 cost of improvement up to SDCs paid

SDC balance ‐                   1,548             ‐                  140,613           142,161        

Reimbursement was partially in cash (for SDCs paid) and partially in credit (for builds that had not yet started)
check 21576 70,692           
check 21788 94,660           
check 21894 7,000             
credit  85,653           

258,005         

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C



Highland Court
Bid Schedule

TSDC Credit Actual Costs

Schedule 24050 - Paving
CONTRACT AMOUNT

DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY PRICE DOLLARS
Highland Court

Consulting Fees % 0.135 $10,366.00 $1,399.41
Project Management % 0.080 $10,366.00 $829.28
Concrete Curb & Gutter - Public Street LF 100.0 $10.80 $1,080.00
Sidewalk SF 500.0 $3.80 $1,900.00
Base Rock, Additional 6" thick w/ fabric - Public Street SF 1600.0 $0.92 $1,472.00
Base Rock, 8" thick - Public Street SF 1600.0 $0.94 $1,504.00
Leveling Rock, 2" thick - Public Street SF 1250.0 $0.41 $512.50
AC 3" Compacted Thickness - Public Street SF 1250.0 $1.41 $1,762.50
Re-construct existing residential driveway EA 1.00              575.00         $575.00

Remove and Dispose Existing AC SF 800.0 $0.75 $600.00
Road Excavation SF 1600.0 $0.60 $960.00

307th
Consulting Fees % 0.135 $28,367.07 $3,829.55 1, 2
Project Management % 0.080 $28,367.07 $2,269.37
Concrete Curb & Gutter - Public Street LF 273.0 $10.80 $2,948.40
Sidewalk SF 1365.0 $3.80 $5,187.00 1, 3
Base Rock, Additional 6" thick w/ fabric - Public Street SF 4368.0 $0.92 $4,018.56
Base Rock, 8" thick - Public Street SF 4368.0 $0.92 $4,018.56
Leveling Rock, 2" thick - Public Street SF 3412.5 $0.41 $1,399.13
AC 3" Compacted Thickness - Public Street SF 3412.5 $1.41 $4,811.63 1, 3
Re-construct existing residential driveway EA 3.00              575.00         $1,725.00

Remove and Dispose Existing AC SF 2184.0 $0.75 $1,638.00
Road Excavation SF 4368.0 $0.60 $2,620.80

Total Schedule 24050 - Paving $47,060.68

Available Credits EA 26.0 ($518.00) ($13,468.00)

1 - Items selected for review.  
2 - 13.5% is for design, inspection, and survey, rate per Wa County TDT Manual
3 - See MAG LLC contract

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 98



Highland Court

Schedule 23000- Water System Contract

DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY PRICE DOLLARS
Soft Costs

Consulting Fees % 13.5 $88,710.87 $11,975.97 1, 2
Project Management % 0.08 $88,710.87 $7,096.87 1, 3

307th
8" Ductile Iron Water Main w/Granular Backfill LF 740.0 $47.00 $34,780.00 1, 5
8" Gate Valve w/ box EA 2.0 $950.00 $1,900.00
Fire Hydrant Assembly (8" X 6") w/ 6" Gate Valve, Including Svc Line EA 1.0 $3,450.00 $3,450.00
Connect to Existing Water System EA 2.0 $2,500.00 $5,000.00
Double Water Service EA 2.0 $625.00 $1,250.00
Connect Existing Water Service EA 5.0 $600.00 $3,000.00
Remove Existing Waterline LF 740.0 $13.00 $9,620.00
Pressure Test, Disinfect, Purge LF 740.0 $2.00 $1,480.00

C.O. #1

Adjustments made to the new 8” waterline in 307th.
Saw cut existing A.C LF 2702.0 $2.00 $5,404.00
A.C. removal and haulaway.   SF 3768.0 $0.52 $1,959.36
A.C. 3” depth trench Patch TNS 71.0 $97.00 $6,887.00 1, 4
Prep trench for  A.C SF 3768.0 $0.67 $2,524.56
Abandonment of existing 4” waterline  LS 1.0 $2,800.00 $2,800.00
City scheduled tie-in (materials by city) LS 1.0 $3,668.00 $3,668.00
15% LS 1.0 $3,486.44 $3,486.44
Removal of remaining 4’ strip of A.C. between new 8” waterline and ½  street 307th
A.C. removal and haul away   SF 2200.0 $0.52 $1,144.00
3” of A.C. Paving    TNS 41.0 $97.00 $3,977.00
15% LS 1.0 $768.15 $768.15
Additional A.C. removal @ Highland  & 307th per city request. $0.00
A.C. removal and haul away  SF 544.0 $0.52 $282.88
3”  of A.C. Paving   TNS 11.0 $97.00 $1,067.00
15% LS 1.0 $202.48 $202.48
Over time for Tie-in on Saturday
Labor 5 men  HRS 5.0 $55.00 $1,375.00
Equipment (130, mini,wl, dt)  LS 1.0 $1,825.00 $1,825.00
15% LS 1.0 $480.00 $480.00
Credit for Remove Existing Waterline LS 1.0 ($9,620.00) ($9,620.00)

C.O. #2
Additional A.C. 3” depth LS 1.0 $2,416.19 $2,416.19

Total Schedule 23000 - Water System Contract $110,199.90

Available Credits EA 26.0 ($4,298.00) ($111,748.00)

1 - Items selected for review. 
2 - 13.5% is for design, inspection, and survey, rate per Wa County TDT Manual
3 - 12.5% initially, reduced to 8% (ODOT rate) for project management
4 - See MAG LLC change order
5 - See MAG LLC Scope of Work

CONTRACT AMOUNT

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 98



Highland Court
TDT Credit Request

CONTRACT AMOUNT
DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY PRICE DOLLARS
Highland Court

Curb and Gutter LF 272.0 $10.80 $2,937.60 1, 2
Base Rock, Additional 6" thick w/ fabric - Public Street SF 1213.0 $0.92 $1,115.96
Base Rock, 8" thick - Public Street SF 1213.0 $0.94 $1,140.22
Leveling Rock, 2" thick - Public Street SF 1213.0 $0.41 $497.33
AC 3" Compacted Thickness - Public Street SF 1213.0 $1.41 $1,710.33 1, 2
Additional AC 3" Compacted Thickness - Public Street LS 0.22 $16,444.85 $3,654.41
Remove and Dispose Existing AC SF 1213.0 $0.75 $909.75
Road Excavation SF 1213.0 $0.60 $727.80

307th
Curb and Gutter LF 507.0 $10.80 $5,475.60 1, 2
Base Rock, Additional 6" thick w/ fabric - Public Street SF 2120.0 $0.92 $1,950.40
Base Rock, 8" thick - Public Street SF 2120.0 $0.92 $1,950.40
Leveling Rock, 2" thick - Public Street SF 2120.0 $0.41 $869.20
AC 3" Compacted Thickness - Public Street SF 2120.0 $1.41 $2,989.20 1, 2
Remove and Dispose Existing AC SF 2120.0 $0.75 $1,590.00
Road Excavation SF 2120.0 $0.60 $1,272.00

Highland Court and 307th
Surveying, Engineering & Inspection % 0.135 $28,790.20 $3,886.68

Total TDT Credit $32,676.88

1 - items selected for review
2 - see MAG LLC Street Scope of Work

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 98

rlembo
Text Box
1, 2

rlembo
Text Box
1, 3

rlembo
Text Box
1 - Items selected for review2 - See appraisal3 - See Cascadian Landscapers contract



City of North Plains Accounts Payable Printed: 04/01/2014 09:27
User:martha Checks by Date - Summary By Check Date Summary

Check Amount
Check No: 21576 Check Date:  10/31/2013
Vendor: DRH001 Vendor Name: DR HORTON  70,691.90

Date Total:  70,691.90

Check No: 21701 Check Date:  12/18/2013
Vendor: DRH001 Vendor Name: DR HORTON  2,500.00

Date Total:  2,500.00

Check No: 21717 Check Date:  12/30/2013
Vendor: DRH001 Vendor Name: DR HORTON  19,995.00

Date Total:  19,995.00

Check No: 21788 Check Date:  01/22/2014
Vendor: DRH001 Vendor Name: DR HORTON  94,660.00

Date Total:  94,660.00

Check No: 21894 Check Date:  03/12/2014
Vendor: DRH001 Vendor Name: DR HORTON  9,500.00

Date Total:  9,500.00

Report Total:  197,346.90

Page 1___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C



 

Agenda Item. 7D  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   August 15, 2012 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Resolution Number 1769 approving credits for fees related to the 

Highland Court subdivision. 

 

Background:  The City has received a request from DR Horton (which is included in 

Council’s packet).  The developer is proposing to build 24 homes at the Highland Court 

subdivision located off Highland Court at Curtis Street and 307
th

 Ave.   

 

The Highland Court subdivision will provide new single family detached dwellings 

options in the North Plains oriented to entry level home purchasers.  Generally, this will 

attract younger families and single professionals.  If this project proceeds it is likely to be 

the only subdivision in construction in 2013, as Cottage Point is almost fully built out.  

Having a steady stream of new homes available in the housing market helps the City’s 

property tax base, and can have the effect of raising surrounding home values. 

 

Highland Court Subdivision was originally proposed by Homestead Development in 

2006, and Planning Commission approved the subdivision in 2007.  A map of the 

approved subdivision map is included in Council’s packet.  Among the conditions in the 

development agreement are: 

 

 Construction of half street improvement (18 feet) on 307
th

 

 Construction of an 8 inch water line in private alley between Curtis Street and 

307th 

 Construction of a public park to be dedicated to the City 

 

Because the map was approved by the Planning Commission and extensions have been 

granted for the subdivision, the owner of the property has a right to construct the 

subdivision as proposed.   

 

The City has since changed its zoning code to allow single family detached homes on 

smaller lots.  DR Horton would prefer to build the single family detached homes in lieu 

of the proposed duplexes shown on the plat.  This does not require any action or approval 

by Council or the Planning Commission.   

 

When staff reviewed the Highland Court map recently, it suggested several changed to 

the developer including.  In general the developer has been very cooperative and willing 

to consider improvements that would enhance the neighborhood feel of the street.  It 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
04/07/14 Agenda Item No: 9C

mreh
Typewritten Text



should be noted the developer is eager to begin the project in advance of the wet season 

(October 15) and is considering this project only because an approved subdivision map 

exists: 

 

 Develop single-family detached homes.  The developer agrees that single-

family detached homes would provide a better neighborhood environment. 

 

 Eliminate the private alley and reorient the lots 16-19 to the streets.  The 

developer declined to pursue this suggestion as the building plans they are 

considering would not fit on the redesigned lots. 

 

 Eliminating the water main in the private alley and upgrading the main in 

307
th

 and a portion of Highland Court to enhance fire suppression capabilities and 

improve water quality.  The developer is working with the City to implement this 

change and is requesting some System Development Charge (SDC) credits in 

exchange for the improvements. 

 

 Widen Curtis Street to allow more on street parking.  The proposed Curtis 

street extension is narrow 34 foot right of way, and provides very limited space 

for on-street parking.  Given the high density of dwelling units and presence of a 

park, on-street parking is needed on this street.  The developer was concerned the 

widening would reduce property sizes.   

 

 Provide additional sidewalks on east side of street.  The proposed plan only 

has sidewalks on the west side, and not on the east side which includes the 

frontage for the new park.  The developer was willing to explore the option. 

 

 Reduce the “No Parking” signage requirements on Curtis Street, as it 

effectively eliminates parking on both sides of the street.  The developer has 

agreed to reduce the signage permitting more parking on Curtis Street. 

 

 Eliminate the mid-street crosswalk.  Mid-street unsignalized crosswalks 

present an unnecessary liability risk for the City.  It is more desirable for 

pedestrians to be mindful of the risk they take in crossing a street where no 

vehicle stops are required, than to provide a false sense of security because 

pedestrians assume that a vehicle will stop in advance of the crosswalk.  The 

developer agreed to the elimination of the crosswalk. 

 

Staff met with representatives of DR Horton on August 16
th

, and they requested that the 

City consider offering credits for the following items: 

 

1. Park System Development Charge (Park SDC) credits at a rate of 100% for the 

park construction and land 

 

2. Transportation System Development Charge (TSDC) credits for those properties 

on 307
th

 that are not a part of the subdivision and for the extra 4 feet width on 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 98



307
th

 (307
th

 is anticipated to be 36 feet as opposed to the regular 28 feet for a 

residential street.) 

 

3. Replacement Dwelling Unit Credit. 

 

4. Transportation Development Tax (TDT) credit for the half street improvement on 

307
th

 which is designated as a collector street 

 

5. Water System Development Charge (Water SDC) credits for the construction of 

an 8 inch main in 307
th

 between Pacific Avenue and Highland Court 

 

It should be noted that SDC credit is not a waiver of the fee.  It is a credit that is provided 

by the City to be used for similar SDC costs on other projects within community over the 

next 10 years.  Thus the City can provide a credit when the first permit is issued, and the 

developer can apply the credit to the next permit they submit.  In order to obtain full 

credits the developer must complete the proposed building project.  Credits can be carried 

over from one project to another; ie from one subdivision to another.  If a credit is unused 

it expires after 10 years. 

 

1. Park SDC – The development is already eligible for a Park SDC credit of 34% 

granted in 2007.  The basis of the calculation was estimating the total number of 

dwelling units that would benefit from the neighborhood park. 

 

The City has already agreed to credit the land value based on an appraisal by a 

independent party. 

 

The Park Master Plan calls for the acquisition of a mini park/neighborhood park 

in the southeast area of town, which is part of the City’s overall need for 4.78 

acres of neighborhood parks.  The proposed park is just under 0.1 acres.  

Additionally, the Master Plan calls for the acquisition of another 9 acres of 

Community park land.  The difference between the types of park is the distance 

from which a resident will travel to the reach a park.  The City Attorney advises 

the City should designate the proposed park as meeting the definition of the 

planned parks for the purpose of the Parks Master Plan.   

 

The park will certainly benefit residents to the east of Glencoe and south of West 

Union.  In addition to the proposed subdivision, the park will serve existing 

homes to north on Curtis Street and future subdivisions to the east of 307
th

.   

 

If a water feature is installed it will likely attract residents from throughout the 

community, and result in a community park rather than a neighborhood-park. 

 

Based on correspondence in the development file, no designs were completed for 

the proposed park.  Staff is recommending the proposed park feature at a 

minimum a water play feature, a play structure suitable for tots and older children, 

an enclosure for a portable toilet and picnic facilities.  The estimated costs for 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 98



equipment will range between $50,000-$100,000.  If the park meets the definition 

of a community park then an expanded credit should be considered for the 

developer. 

 

2. TSDC – After discussing the use of TSDC credits with the City Attorney Paul 

Elsner, he is recommending the City consider forming a Local Improvement 

District for the construction of 307th, and the developer receive cash 

reimbursements as the other properties in the LID are improved. Because 307
th

 

was always proposed at 36 foot width, providing an additional credit for the extra 

width seems unwarranted. 

 

3. Replacement Dwelling Unit Credit is customary when a house is removed from a 

property and replaced by a different dwelling unit.  This credit does not require 

Council’s approval. 

 

4. TDT – Washington County rules provide that developers can receive credits for  

some collector street improvements and can be reimbursed at a rate up to 50%.  

307
th

 is a collector street.  The criteria for the credits is clearly laid out in the 

County ordinance.  Staff recommends that reimbursements be awarded as 

provided under County ordinance.  If the street does not meet the conditions of 

the TDT reimbursement criteria, no reimbursement would be provided by the 

City.  

 

5. Water SDC – The City is proposing a significant change in the design of the water 

system in the area of 307
th

.  The upsizing of the main from 4 inches to 8 inches 

will directly benefit the subdivision, adjacent residentially zoned properties, and 

industrially zoned properties to the south of Highland Court.  Improvement of the 

this section of water main is in the City’s masterplan.  Water modeling shows it 

will improve fire suppression ability in the area, and provide adequate flow for all 

future projects in the industrial area south of Highland Court.  If this improvement 

is made the developer will not be required to build approximately 148 feet of 8 

inch main in the private alley as shown on the improvement plans.   

 

Staff is recommending the developer be credited for additional footage less the 

amount of 8 inch main that they would otherwise had to construct (Approximately 

$50,000.).  

 

Recommendation:  Council adopt Resolution Number 1769 crediting certain fees and 

approving the creation of a local improvement district for 307
th

..  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 98

mdebry
Polygon

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 98

mdebry
Polygon



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 98

mdebry
Polygon



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 98

mdebry
Polygon



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 98



 

Agenda Item No.9D-9E-9F-9G 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: April 2, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Interviewing prospective Members to the North Plains Budget Committee 
 
 

Request:  Four citizens have responded to the request for additional Budget Committee 
members.  Three of the four have not served on the Budget Committee previously. 
Marrina Abeln has served before and her application has been submitted for approval. Ms. 
Abeln had been a member of the Budget Committee for a number of years. She had to 
resign in the fall of 2013 when she became employed by the City of North Plains as an 
Office Assistant at City Hall. Marrina has since found employment elsewhere and is now 
eligible and wants to be a member of the Budget Committee again. 
 
We currently have six open positions which need to be filled for the 2014-15 FY Budget 
process. 
 
Orvalle Lengele, Vernon Epling, and Marilyn Firth have not served on the North Plains 
Budget Committee before.  They have agreed to be present at the April 7, 2014 Council 
meeting to meet the Council and to be interviewed for the position. Each applicant will 
need to be approved by resolution by the Council to the City of North Plains Budget 
Committee, which also serves as the North Plains Urban Renewal Agency Budget 
Committee. 
 
Background:  In Oregon each public agency must gather a budget committee to review 
the financial plan for the year.  Openings on the Budget Committee were advertised on the 
City website. 
 
Recommendation:  Council consider appointing Marrina Abeln, Orvalle Lengele, Vernon 
Epling, and Marilyn Firth to the North Plains Budget Committee. 
 
Sample Motions: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1824 appointing Marrina Abeln to the North Plains Budget 
Committee for a term of four years ending on December 31, 2017. 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1825 appointing Orvalle Lengele to the North Plains 
Budget Committee for a term of three years ending on December 31, 2016. 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1826 appointing Vernon Epling to the North Plains Budget 
Committee for a term of three years ending on December 31, 2016. 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1827 appointing Marilyn Firth to the North Plains Budget 
Committee for a term of three years ending on December 31, 2016. 
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 98



 
Resolution No. 1824 
Adopted:  April 7, 2014 
Budget Committee Appointment-Abeln 

RESOLUTION NO. 1824 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE NORTH PLAINS BUDGET 

COMMITTEE 
 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 294.336, establishes that governing 
bodies of each municipal corporation shall establish a Budget Committee; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of City of North Plains Municipal Code 
Section 1.05.190, the City Council is to appoint persons to fill vacant positions on the 
Budget Committee by Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are currently six (6) vacant positions on the Budget 
Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, advertisements have been placed in the city newsletter and City 
website encouraging citizens to apply for the Budget Committee and four individuals  
have submitted an application for the Budget Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council conducted interviews at the April 7, 2014 Council 

meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Marrina Abeln is hereby appointed to the Budget Committee 
for a four year term expiring December 31, 2017. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 98



 
Resolution No. 1825 
Adopted:  April 7, 2014 
Budget Committee Appointment-Lengele 

RESOLUTION NO. 1825 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE NORTH PLAINS BUDGET 

COMMITTEE 
 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 294.336, establishes that governing 
bodies of each municipal corporation shall establish a Budget Committee; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of City of North Plains Municipal Code 
Section 1.05.190, the City Council is to appoint persons to fill vacant positions on the 
Budget Committee by Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are currently six (6) vacant positions on the Budget 
Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, advertisements have been placed in the city newsletter and City 
website encouraging citizens to apply for the Budget Committee and four individuals  
have submitted an application for the Budget Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council interviewed the applicants at the April 7, 2014 

Council meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Orvalle Lengele is hereby appointed to the Budget 
Committee for a three year term expiring December 31, 
2016. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 98



 
Resolution No. 1826 
Adopted:  April 7, 2014 
Budget Committee Appointment-Epling 

RESOLUTION NO. 1826 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE NORTH PLAINS BUDGET 

COMMITTEE 
 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 294.336, establishes that governing 
bodies of each municipal corporation shall establish a Budget Committee; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of City of North Plains Municipal Code 
Section 1.05.190, the City Council is to appoint persons to fill vacant positions on the 
Budget Committee by Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are currently six (6) vacant positions on the Budget 
Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, advertisements have been placed in the city newsletter and City 
website encouraging citizens to apply for the Budget Committee and four individuals  
have submitted an application for the Budget Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council interviewed the applicants at the April 7, 2014 

Council meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Vernon Epling is hereby appointed to the Budget Committee 
for a three year term expiring December 31, 2016. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 98



___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 85 of 98



 
Resolution No. 1827 
Adopted:  April 7, 2014 
Budget Committee Appointment-Firth 

RESOLUTION NO. 1827 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE NORTH PLAINS BUDGET 

COMMITTEE 
 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 294.336, establishes that governing 
bodies of each municipal corporation shall establish a Budget Committee; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of City of North Plains Municipal Code 
Section 1.05.190, the City Council is to appoint persons to fill vacant positions on the 
Budget Committee by Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are currently six (6) vacant positions on the Budget 
Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, advertisements have been placed in the city newsletter and City 
website encouraging citizens to apply for the Budget Committee and four individuals  
have submitted an application for the Budget Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council interviewed the applicants at the April 7, 2014 

Council meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Marilyn J. Firth is hereby appointed to the Budget Committee 
for a three year term expiring December 31, 2016. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 86 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9H     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  April 1, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of Kaybern Street lot 

Request:  Council discuss options for the Kaybern Street lot. 
 
Background:   At the March 17, 2014 City Council meeting North Plains Chamber of 
Commerce Secretary Cindy Hirst asked Council to consider its plans for the lot, as it 
was originally purchased to serve as a parking lot for the downtown area.  
 
The City through its Urban Renewal Agency owns two parcels at Kaybern and Main 
Street which total 12,825 square feet.  The lot can accommodate about 25-30 vehicles, 
assuming drivers park in close proximity to each other along the edges and in a row in 
the middle.  (From the north fence to south fence is approximately 78 linear feet.  From 
the building to the City’s property line is approximately 110 feet.)  A few additional 
spaces can be made if the 35 x 45 foot building is removed.  
 

 
The area outlined in red is the lot and the blue represents existing fencing.  The lot to 
the right of the City’s lot is owned by Michael Basile, who also owns the Rogue Brew 
Pub at 31500 NW Commercial Street.   
 
Since it was acquired, the property has been leased to landscaping firms to serve as a 
corporation yard where equipment, materials and vehicles are stored.  The tenant 
currently leases the space on a month-to-month basis and pays $600/month for the use 
of the facility.  The agreement the City has with the tenant allows the City to terminate 
the agreement with 30 day notice.  As a practical matter the City should provide as 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 87 of 98



much notice as possible if the agreement is to change, so that the tenant can find a new 
place of business.  
 
Staff has evaluated the property to determine how its use can be changed into a parking 
lot.   
 
Surface – The surface currently consists of unimproved ground.  It is adequate as a 
driving surface.  An unimproved lot is prone to becoming muddy in the event of rain, 
which may limit its utility periodically.  One way to keep the surface useful in rain is to 
add 1-3 inches of rock, which would cost less than $2,000.  Puddles will still occur, but 
mud will be less problematic.   
 
An improved asphaltic surface would require engineering, and would cost around 
$2/square foot for materials.  Curbing, drainage swales, lighting and other 
improvements, would increase the cost into the range of $70,000-$120,000. 
 

Access – At present the driveway to 
the lot is near the southern portion of 
the Last Waterin’ Hole. This driveway 
is also used by the North Plains 
Market, creating a thru lot for parking.  
A gate used by the tenant could be 
opened/removed to make access 
more simple.  
 
A secondary access could be 
created from Kaybern Street.  Some 
minor improvements would be 
needed as the existing drainage pipe 
is inadequate to support the weight 
of heavy vehicle.  
 
Screening - Along the western part 
of the lot, where a substantial 
amount of plant screening is in place 
between the building and Main 
Street. No screening is present on 
the other fences. 
 
Building – An existing building on 
the site provides a storage area for 
the current tenant. It likely has 
electricity, but it does not have water 
or sewer connections.   The City 
could remove it to create more 

space for parking or it could leave the building in place, and use it as a storage place for 
barricades, tables, etc for events like the Fourth of July, Garlic Festival and Farmers’ 
Market.  ___________________________________ 

NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 
Monday, April 7, 2014 

Packet Pagination: Page 88 of 98



 
Fencing – Currently there is fencing on most but not all sides of the lot.   Generally the 
fencing is fair condition.  There is no fencing between the lot and the buildings occupied 
by the Market, Antiques Mall or Rogue.  A fence is in place between the Basile property 
and the Senior Plaza.  
 
Staff was in the process of reaching out to business and property owners in the area at 
the time this report was written.  Additional verbal information will be available at the 
Council meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  If council wants to move forward with changing the use of the lot the 
lease would need to be terminated, which would reduce the Urban Renewal Agency 
income by $6,000 per year.  Improvements made to the lot would be expenses of the 
Urban Renewal Agency.  No project has been designated or approved at this time, 
however funding can be made available for this purpose.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item if no 
improvements are made.  If an asphaltic surface is added the project would need to be 
engineered to manage storm water run-off, which may require swale improvements.  
 
Recommendation:  Council discuss if it would like to change the use of the Kaybern 
Street lot to a parking lot and when that should occur.  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 89 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9I 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  April 7, 2014 

To:  City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager on behalf of Debra Brodie, Library Director 

Subject: Food for Fines 

Request: Donate one week’s intake of Library fines to the North Plains Food Pantry 

Background:  Many WCCLS Libraries have traditionally collected canned goods for their 

local food banks during National Library Week.  The North Plains Public Library has never 

before participated. 

This year’s celebration will take place between Sunday, April 13 and Saturday, April 19.  This 

year’s theme is Lives Change @ Your Library.  North Plains Library Staff would like to 

participate in this activity in the hope of making a difference for people in our community. 

We know from other libraries that the physical collection of canned goods is not the most 

effective way to help.  Receiving physical product involves an inordinate amount of time.  

Employees or volunteers would have either to determine cash equivalency in can value to 

fines owed or to physically weigh cans and apply a formula for pounds per dollar value.  As 

expired canned goods are not acceptable, each donation would have to be scrutinized for 

its expiration date, and items past their prime would have to be discarded.  We simply have 

more pressing Library jobs for our staff and volunteers to tackle in their limited time than to 

deal with cans. 

Furthermore, Food Bank workers have purchasing power that allows them to acquire more 

goods with cash than average shoppers.  The most effective way to help a food pantry, 

besides volunteering, is to donate cash. 

Fiscal Impact: The Library’s average intake per week is about $75 and has not been 

more than $200 in any given week.  Monies collected include payment for lost materials as 

well as fines.  We do not propose to donate our receipts for lost materials, only fines.  We 

would publicly advertise our intent to donate fine proceeds to the North Plains Food Pantry, 

and we imagine our generous patrons would respond and make the effort to clear up their 

accounts that particular week, thus amassing more income than usual that could be donated.  

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 90 of 98



We hesitate to put a cap on the donation amount as we feel it would be less likely to inspire 

altruism.  We guess the amount would perhaps be between $200-$250 on the high side. 

No Environmental Issues 

Sample Motion: Donate the equivalent amount in Library fines received during National 

Library Week 2014, from Sunday, April 13 through Saturday, April 19, to the North Plains 

Food Pantry. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 91 of 98



 

Page 1 of 4 
Moratorium of Medical Marijuana Facilities 

 

Agenda Item No: 11A 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: March 31, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance No. 422 Temporarily 
Prohibiting the Location of Medical Marijuana Facilities Within the City of 
North Plains 

 

Request:  Council to introduce Ordinance No. 422 – An Ordinance of the City Council 

of the City of North Plains, Oregon, temporarily prohibiting the location of medical 

marijuana facilities within the City of North Plains and read by title only for the first time. 

Background: State law recently enacted allows medical marijuana facilities to be 

located in areas zoned as for commercial, industrial or mixed use.  Key provisions in 

State law are: 

 No dispensary may open or operate within 1,000 feet of a primary or secondary 

school 

 No dispensary may open or operate within 1,000 feet of another dispensary. 

Applications for competing locations will be processed on a first-come, first-

served basis 

 Dispensaries must be located only in areas zoned commercial, industrial or 

agriculture.  

 All medical marijuana distributed through dispensaries must be tested for 

pesticides, mold and mildew, and may not be distributed if contaminants are 

found 

 There must be a strong security system in place 

 All product brought into and dispensed from the facility must be accounted for 

 The Oregon Health Authority will visit and inspect each dispensary and audit its 

financial records at least once a year 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 92 of 98



 

Page 2 of 4 
Moratorium of Medical Marijuana Facilities 

For North Plains, the 1,000 feet of a primary school extends to the west and north of 

Main and Hillcrest, and west and north of 318th and Commercial.   

The law also prohibits location within 1,000 feet of schools classified as “Career – 

private, proprietary, professional, technical, business or other schools of instruction, 

organizations or persons offering any instruction or training for the purpose or purported 

purpose of instruction, training or preparing persons for any profession at a physical 

location attended primarily by minors.”  If the City can define pre-schools or Montessori 

schools as career school then technically no place on Commercial Street and most of 

Glencoe are prohibited from hosting dispensaries.   The remaining locations where 

dispensaries can be located are industrial areas to the west of 318th/320th and south of 

Commercial or north of West Union. 

 

Many local agencies are struggling with interpreting this new rule, and incorporating it 

into existing zoning ordinances.  At present it is not an outright permitted use within the 

City, but would have to be considered as a conditional use.  Twenty one (21) Oregon 

Cities (including Cave Junction, Clatskanie, Culver, Dallas, Fairview, Falls City, Grants 

Pass, Gresham, Harrisburg, Hermiston, John Day, Madras, Medford, Redmond, Sandy, 

Scappoose, Stayton, Toledo, Wilsonville, Winston and Wood Village) have implemented 

rules that effectively ban medical marijuana dispensaries, and another fourteen (14) 

have implemented moratoriums including Baker City, Beaverton, Coos Bay, Cornelius, 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 93 of 98



 

Page 3 of 4 
Moratorium of Medical Marijuana Facilities 

Dayton, Florence, Gladstone, Hillsboro, Milwaukie, North Bend, Phoenix, Tualatin, 

Tigard and Sherwood.  

Under Senate Bill 1531 local governments have until May 1, 2014 to enact a 

moratorium, which must expire by May 1, 2015. 

The City of Hillsboro recently adopted an ordinance similar to the draft Ordinance 

included in the Council packet.  This version provides a moratorium for 240 days versus 

120 days.  If adopted, the North Plains ordinance would need to be updated in the 

future. 

In February, Washington County Law Enforcement Council, on which Police Chief Bill 

Snyder serves as Vice Chair, provided the following announcement:   

"It is the position of the Washington County Law Enforcement Council 

(LEC) to oppose the establishment of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 

within the city and county limits of Washington County. The possession, 

distribution, and manufacture of marijuana, although permissible under 

provisions of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program (OMMP) and related 

statutes and rules, are a violation of Federal Law. 

While the member agencies of LEC will consistently and fairly enforce 

established laws and ordinances of our communities, we believe the 

proliferation of marijuana use and availability outside the scope of the 

OMMP is a serious public health concern and has negative implications for 

the welfare of our community. We believe expanding the availability of 

marijuana, even under the auspices of the OMMP, will harm the general 

welfare of our community because of the significant potential to increase 

marijuana use among our youth, place a higher burden on emergency room 

care, drug treatment and other health care systems, increase marijuana-

related exposure cases, and increase illegal interstate drug trafficking. 

Marijuana impairment doubles the risk of deadly traffic crashes and is a 

major causal factor in high school dropouts. 

We believe medical marijuana dispensaries will have additional potential 

negative secondary effects on the community. These secondary effects 

include, but are not limited to the following: criminal activity, loitering, 

increased traffic, noise, litter, and a loss of trade for other businesses 

located nearby by interference. Local government control of land use and 

organized development helps promote local community values. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 94 of 98



 

Page 4 of 4 
Moratorium of Medical Marijuana Facilities 

The member agencies of LEC have an ethical duty and statutory obligation 

to ensure the safety of our communities. Medical marijuana dispensaries 

are harmful to the surrounding community and its residents and constitute 

a public nuisance contrary to our community values which support 

Washington County as a safe place to live, work, and raise a family." 

Mayor Hatcher suggested that this issue be presented to Council for consideration, as 

Washington County communities share a tradition of adopting rules that are supportive 

of each other.  With six (6) cities already imposing moratoriums, it would be prudent for 

North Plains to align its policies with the neighboring agencies.  The larger cities of 

Hillsboro, Tualatin and Sherwood are taking a lead in vetting policies and ordinances.  

Staff recommends that Council discuss its approach to the medical marijuana issue.  

Beaverton has already adopted both an ordinance and moratorium.  

Helpful links that explain the State law in more detail are below: 

State Statute:  http://www.oregon.gov/osp/des/docs/med_mj_patient_info.pdf  

Rules for dispensaries: http://www.oregon.gov/oha/mmj/Pages/rules.aspx  

Dispensary registration: 

http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon

_nu.html  

Status of regulations in other communities: 

http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon

_wh.html  

Fiscal Impact: The ordinance will not have any direct fiscal impact on the City.  At this 

time there are no dispensaries, or any requests to locate dispensaries in town.  The City 

also has no special permits or taxes associated with marijuana dispensary.   

Environmental Issues:  NA 

Recommendation: Council read Ordinance No. 422 temporarily prohibiting the location 

of medical marijuana facilities within the City of North Plains by title only for the first 

time. 

Sample Motion: I move to read Ordinance No. 422 by title only for the first time. 

Mayor to read title: Ordinance No. 422: On Ordinance of the City of North Plains, 

Oregon, Temporarily Prohibiting the Location of Medical Marijuana Facilities Within the 

City of North Plains. 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 95 of 98

http://www.oregon.gov/osp/des/docs/med_mj_patient_info.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/mmj/Pages/rules.aspx
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_nu.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_nu.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_wh.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_wh.html


Ordinance No. 422 

Adopted: April 21, 2014 

Marijuana Facilities 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 422 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, TEMPORARILY 
PROHIBITING THE LOCATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA FACILITIES WITHIN 

THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
 

WHEREAS, in the 2013 Special Session, the Oregon Legislature approved 
House Bill 3460 which creates a medical marijuana registration system and allows for 
medical marijuana facilities to be located in areas zoned for commercial, industrial, or 
mixed use; and 

 
WHEREAS, House Bill 3460 also includes further specific restrictions on the 

location of medical marijuana facilities related to proximity to schools attended by 
minors and to other medical marijuana facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, this use and these restrictions are not currently included in North 

Plains Municipal Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission will shortly begin the process of 
amending the zoning ordinances to add zoning regulations for medical marijuana 
facilities, a process expected to take up to eight months, and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Plains City Council believes that siting medical 

marijuana facilities within the City absent zoning regulations endangers the health, 
peace, and welfare of the City of North Plains. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS ORDAINS AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Effective with the adoption of this ordinance, no 
person shall site a medical marijuana facility 
(as described in House Bill 3460 of the 2013 
Oregon Special Legislative Session) within the 
city limits of North Plains. 

 
Section 2. The prohibition on siting of medical marijuana 

facilities shall be in effect until May 1, 2015 or 
the effective date of an adopted amendment 
to the Municipal Code establishing zoning 
regulations for such facilities, whichever occurs 
first. 

 
Section 3. The City Manager is charged with enforcement 

of this temporary prohibition. 
 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 96 of 98



Ordinance No. 422 

Adopted: April 21, 2014 

Marijuana Facilities 

Page 2 of 2 

 

INTRODUCED on the 7th day of April 2014, AND ADOPTED 
this 21st day of April 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 97 of 98



NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
Monday, April 7, 2014 @ 8:00 p.m. 

MEETING DATE AND TIME 
 

Jessie Mays Community Hall 
LOCATION 

 

THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER UNDER AUTHORITY OF: 

 192.660(2)(d) Labor Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(h) Legal Counsel 

 192.660(2)(i) Employee Evaluations 

 192.660(2)(a) Employment of public officer, staff 
member or individual (attorney) 

 192.660(2)(b) Discipline 

X 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions 

 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records 

 192.690(2)(g) Trade Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(j) Public Investments 

 
PURSUANT TO OREGON REVISED STATUTES, 

NO INFORMATION FROM THIS SESSION SHALL BE DISCLOSED BY THE NEWS MEDIA. 
 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Elected Officials: 
 
 
 
 
Staff: 
 
 
 
 
City Attorney: 
 
 
Consultants: 
 
 
 
 
Media: 

___________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, April 7, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 98 of 98


	4A 040714 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 031714 Minutes
	6C1 Police Dept March 2014 Department report
	6C2 PW Report to Council 040714
	6C3 Library Director Report to Council 2014 03-10
	7A Letter to Mayor Proclamation Nat'l Community Development Week
	7A Proclamation 2014 Community Development Week 042114-042614
	8A Memo Supplemental Budget 2013-14 Revised 040714
	Table of Contents
	Budget Message
	INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 610
	GENERAL FUND 110
	Culture and Recreation
	General Government
	Police
	Public Works
	Parks
	Library
	Planning

	STREET FUND 111
	WATER FUND 210
	TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND 130
	PARKS CAPITAL FUND 131
	TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 132
	VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND 009
	TRANSFERS

	9A Resolution No. 1819 Supplemental Budget 2013-2014
	9C1 DR Horton SDC reconciliation
	1
	DR Horton SDC reconciliation
	1
	DR Horton SDC reconciliation
	DR Horton SDC reconciliation
	1
	DR Horton SDC reconciliation
	1
	DR Horton exp detail
	1
	2
	3
	4



	1



	9C2 Checks by Date Summary Dr HORTon
	9C3 Memo Res No 1769 DR Horton Highland Court Credit for Fees
	9C4 090412 Council Minutes RS - approved
	9C5 Resolution Number 1769 - Signed DR Horton
	9D A Memo appointing four citizens to Budget committee by 4 Resolutions
	9D Budget Comm Appl Abeln
	9D Resolution Number 1824 Appointment to Budget Committee-Marrina Abeln
	9F Budget Comm Appl Lengele
	9E Resolution Number 1825 Appointment to Budget Committee-Orvalle Lengele
	9E Budget Comm Appl Epling
	9F Resolution Number 1826 Appointment to Budget Committee-Vernon Epling
	9G Budget Comm Appl Firth
	9G Resolution Number 1827 Appointment to Budget Committee-Marilyn Firth
	9H Kaybern Street Property Options
	9I Fines for Food Memo to Council
	11A Memo Ordinance No. 422 Moratorium of Medical Marijauna facilities
	11A Ordinance Draft No. 422 marijuana
	12 EXE SESSION REAL ESTATE



